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EECCURER
Deprosc Laghbitta Bittiya Santha Limited
Comparison of Unaudited Financial Stetment as of FY 2075/ 076
Rs ,000
As per Unaudited | As per Audited variance
S.No. Particulars Financial Financial Reasons for Variance
Stetement Statement In Amount In %
Tax Liabilitiesansd
Provision amount
1.00 | Total Capital & Liabilities ( 1.1t0 1.7 ) 12,856,096 12,486,673 (369,423.00) (2.96) | shown in Net
1.10 | Paid up Capital 773,410 1,005,434 232,024.00 23.08
Adjustment made for
1.20 | Reserve and Surplus 782,820 563,038 (219,782.00) |  (39.04) | P/L appropriation
1.30 | Debenture and Bond - -
1.40 | Borrowing 6,783,929 6,783,929 - | Adjustment Borrowing
1.50 | Deposit ( a+b) 3,824,791 3,824,791
a) members 3,824,791 3,824,791
b) Public
1.60 | Income Tax Liabilities -
1.70 | Other liabilities 691,146 309,481 (381,665.00) | (123.32)
Tax Liabilities amount
2.00 | Total Assets (2.1t0 2.7 ) 12,856,096 12,486,673 (369,423.00) (2.96) | shown in Net
2.10 | Cash and Bank Balance 354,203 354,203 -
2.20 | Money of call and Short Notice 37,853 37,853 -
2.30 | Investment 2,010 2,000 (10.00) - | Netted
2.40 | Loan and advances 11,968,149 11,837,153 (130,996.00) (1.11)
2.50 | Fixed assets 44,099 45,379 1,280.00 2.82
2.60 | Non Banking assets - - -
2.70 | Other assets 449,782 210,085 (239,697.00) | (114.10) | Netted
3.00 | Profit & Loss account -
3.10 | Interest Income 1,671,469 1,671,468 (1.00) - | Category Channged
3.20 | Interest Expence 855,347 862,778 7,431.00 0.86 | Reconcilled
A | Net Interest Income ( 3.1-3.2) 816,122 808,690 (7,432.00) (0.92)
3.30 | Fees, Commission and Discount 220,075 - (220,075.00) -
3.40 | Other Operating Income 41,957 262,024 220,067.00 83.99 | Category Channged
3.50 | Foreign Exchange Gain +Loss (Net) - -
B | Total Operating Income ( A+3.3+3.4+3.5) 1,078,154 1,070,714 (7,440.00) (0.69)
3.60 | Staff Expences 288,831 284,139 (4,692.00) (1.65) | Reconciliation made
3.70 | Other Operating Expence 111,195 110,284 (911.00) (0.83)
C. | operating Profit Before Provision ( B-3.6-3.7) 678,128 676,291 (1,837.00) (0.27)
3.80 | Provision for possible losses 140,252 321,456 181,204.00 56.37
D | Operating Profit (C - 3.8) 537,876 354,835 (183,041.00) |  (51.58)
3.90 | Non operating Income /Expense ( Net) - 7 7.00
3.10 | Write Back of Provision for possible Loss 138,255 314,804 176,549.00 56.08
E | Profit from Regular Activities ( D+3.9+3.10) 676,131 669,646 (6,485.00) (0.97)
3.11 | Extraordinary Income /Expences ( Net) (92) 352 444.00| 126.14 | Capital Gain Included
F | Profit Before Bonus and Taxes ( E+3.11) 676,039 669,998 (6,041.00) (0.90)
3.12 | Povision for staff Bonus 61,458 67,000 5,542.00 8.27
Income Tax Adjustment
3.13 | Provision for Tax 184,374 181,601 (2,773.00) (1.53) | upto last Year
3.14 | Differ Tax - 2,449 2,449.00| 100.00 | Calculation of Differ Tax
G | Net profit /Loss ( F-3.12-3.13) 430,207 423,846 (6,361.00)
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Deprosc Laghbitta Bittiya Santha Limited

Unaudited Financial Results ( Quarterly )
As of 4" Quarter Fiscal Year 2075/ 2076

M W 5. T ¥R

Rs ,000
. Correspondin
S.No. Particulars This Quarter Ending Pé'ew_ous Qu_arter Previous yZar ngrter
nding Chaitra Ending

1.00 | Total Capital and Liabilities ( 1.1t0 1.7) 12,856,096 11,290,638 8,647,780
1.10 | Paid up Capital 773,410 773,410 703,100
1.20 | Reserve and Surplus 782,820 642,812 517,189
1.30 | Debenture abd Bond - - -
1.40 | Borrowing 6,783,929 6,062,067 4,658,793
1.50 | Deposit ( a+b) 3,824,791 3,343,121 2,410,393
a) members 3,824,791 3,343,121 2,410,393

b) Public - -

1.60 | Income Tax Liabilities - - -
1.70 | Other liabilities 691,146 469,228 358,305
2.00 | Total Assets (2.1t0 2.7) 12,856,096 11,290,638 8,647,780
2.10 | Cash and Bank Balance 354,203 201,615 592,104
2.20 | Money of call and Short Notice 37,853 61,752 -
2.30 | Investment 2,010 2,010 2,010
2.40 | Loan and advances 11,968,149 10,630,795 7,756,178
2.50 | Fixed assets 44,099 32,946 31,450
2.60 | Non Banking assets - - -
2.70 | Other assets 449,782 361,520 266,038

. . Up to correspondin
3.00 | Profit & Loss account Up to this Quarter Up to Previous Quarter preF:/ious YearpQuartSr
3.10 | Interest Income 1,671,469 1,162,869 1,155,646
3.20 | Interes Expence 855,347 578,839 529,856
A Net Interest Income ( 3.1-3.2) 816,122 584,030 625,790
3.30 | Fees, Commission and Discount 220,075 166,643 -
3.40 | Other operating Income 41,957 16,144 127,983
3.50 | Foreign Exchange Gain /Loss (Net) - - -
B Total Operating Income ( A+3.3+3.4+3.5) 1,078,154 766,817 753,773
3.60 | Staff Expences 288,831 191,491 268,195
3.70 | Other Operating Expence 111,195 71,279 72,888
C. operating Profit Before Provision ( B-3.6-3.7) 678,128 504,047 412,690
3.80 | Provision for possible losses 140,252 116,803 107,594
D Opereting Profit (C - 3.8) 537,876 387,244 305,096
3.90 | Non operating Income / Expense ( Net) - -
3.10 | Write Back of Provision for possible Loss 138,255 64,064 69,411
E Profit from Regular Activities ( D+3.9+3.10) 676,131 451,308 374,507
3.11 | Extraordinary Income /Expences ( Net) (92) 98 44
F Profit Before Bonus and Taxes ( E+3.11) 676,039 451,406 374,551
3.12 | Povision for staff Bonus 61,458 41,037 34,050
3.13 | Provision for Tax 184,374 123,111 102,150
G Net profit / Loss ( F-3.12-3.13) 430,207 287,258 238,351
At the End of this At the End of Previous cAt the End.Of
. Quarter Quarter _orrespondmg

4.00 | Ratios Previous Year Quarter
4.10 | Capital Fun to RWA 12.89 13.58 14.92
4.20 | Non performing Loan ( NPA) to Total Loan 0.84 0.88 0.75
4.30 | Total Loan Loss Provision to toal NPL 125.66 187.20 204.46
4.40 | Cost of Funds 10.08 9.70 10.67
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S' R_ PAN D EY & c 0. 2nd Floor, House No. 2979/33 Tel.: 977-1-4720983, 2104700
Nabil Galli, Maharajgunj Fax: 977-1-4720983
Chartered Accountants P. O. Box No. 2343 e-mail: info@srp.com.np

Kathmandu, Nepal

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya
Sanstha Limited, which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2076,
(July 16, 2019), the Statement of Profit or Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Change in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on Ashad 31,
2076 (July 16, 2019), and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereafter referred to as “the Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the laghubitta, as at Ashad 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019), and its financial performance, changes
in equity, cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information, in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards with
allowed carveouts and comply with Company Act, 2063 and Bank and Financial Institution Act
2073.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with Nepal Standards on
Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the laghubitta in accordance with the Handbook of The Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ICAN’s Handbook of The
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Matter

Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited has prepared a separate set of financial statements
for the year ended July 16, 2019 in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards on which
we issued a separate auditor’s report to the shareholders of Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Santha
Limited dated 10 of Poush, 2076.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Laghubitta’s Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management report, Report of the
Board of Directors and Chairman’s statement but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Page10of 3
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Financial
Statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud and error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the laghubitta‘s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the laghubitta or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the laghubitta’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the laghubitta’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the laghubitta’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the laghubitta to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

. )
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that w é ve-egmplied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to commufjeqte “.i-:ﬁhem all

Page 2 of 3
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relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Reqgulatory Requirements

Based on our examination, we would like to further report that:

vi.

We have obtained all the information and explanations, which were considered necessary for
the purpose for our audit.

The Financial Statement are in agreement with the books of account maintained by
Laghubitta.

The proper books of accounts as required by the law have been maintained by the Laghubitta.
During our examination of the books of account of the Laghubitta, we have not come across
any cases where any office holder of the Laghubitta has acted contrary to the provisions of
law or caused loss or damage to the Laghubitta.

We have not come across any fraudulence in the accounts, based on our sample examination
of the books, and

The returns received from branches of the Laghubitta were adequate for the purpose of our
audit though the statements are independently not audited.

For, S. R. Pandey & Co.

i_.’u
Date: 2076-09-10
Place: Kathmandu Sudarshan Raj Pandey
UDIN: 200108CA00031EzOaF Senior Partner
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Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Financial Position

As on 31st Ashad 2076
Particulars Notes 31 Ashad 2076 32 Ashad 2075
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 41 392,055,887 602,715,478
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 - -
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 43 - -
Derivative financial instruments 4.4 - -
QOther trading assets 45 R i
Loan and Advances to B/Fls 46 - -
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 12,093,369,748 7,962,317,732
Investment in securities 4.8 2,010,000 2,010,000
Current Tax Assets 4.9 19,171,923 1,220,704
Investment in subsidiaries 4.10 - -
Investment in Associates 4.11 - -
Investment property 4.12 - -
Property and equipment 413 44,676,204 30,680,969
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 414 702,567 872,785
Deferred tax assets 4.15 - -
QOther assets 4.16 45,320,824 34,314,576
Total Assets 12,597,307,154 8,640,132,244
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 417 6,783,067,279 4,654,967,731
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 418 862,196 1,804,060
Derivative Financial instruments 419 - -
Deposit from customers 4.20 3,824,790,763 2,410,393,159
Borrowings 421 - -
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 - -
Provisions 422 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 4.15 31,928,054 13,548,244
Other liabilities 4.23 170,870,454 252,531,652
Debt securities issued 4.24 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 425 - -
Total liabilities 10,811,518,745 1,333,244,846
Equity
Share Capital 4.26 773,410,442 703,100,402
Share Premium - -
Retained Earning 386,179,309 309,077,130
Reserves 427 626,198,658 294,709,866
Total equity attributable to equity holders 1,785,788,408 1,306,887,398
Non-controlling interests - -
Total equity 1,785,788,408 1,306,887,398
Total liabilities and equity 12,5917,307,153 8,640,132,244
Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.28 - -
Net assets value per share 230.90 185.87
Raju Mahat Chhetri Hem Kumar Kafle Subodh Lohani

Manager Officiating Chief Executive Officer
Finance and Accounts Department

Yagya Prakash Neupane Naresh Man Pradhan
Director Independent Director
Rita Paudel Dr. Vrigu Rishi Duwadi
Director Director

Date  :2076.09.10
Place  : Kathmandu

U0 3eR} aifffcs AENRUT JaT 31.d. 200Y/066

Director

Ramesh Kumar Raghubanshi

Director

Deepak Khanal

Chairman

As per our report of even date

Sudarshan Raj Pandey

Senior Partner

S.R Pandey & Co.
Chartered Accountants




Sl crgfda fadia ien foifdes
Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Santha Limited
(AT T ST “BI” ST IoTToiel ATl Eea)

Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2076

. 2075-16 2074-75
Particulars Notes NPR NPR

Interest Income 4.29 1,724,815,268 1,167,152,107
Interest Expense 4.30 (864,016,780) (538,775,806)
Net interest income 860,798,487 628,376,301
Fees and Commission Income 431 262,024,473 127,648,880
Fees and Commission Expense 4.32 773,835 196,515
Net fee and Commission income 261,250,638 127,452,365
Net interest fee and commission income 1,122,049,125 155,828,666
Net Trading Income 4.33 - -
QOther Operating Income 434 7,433 390,258
Total operating income 1,122,056,558 156,218,924
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.35 6,652,509 40,263,760
Net Operating income 1,115,404,049 115,955,164
Operating expenses
Personal Expense 4.36 355,580,887 264,970,968
QOther Operating Expenses 437 101,237,672 67,868,740
Depreciation and amortisation 4.38 8,336,744 7,511,541
Operating Profit 650,248,746 375,603,915
Non operating income 439 351,856 43,852
Non operating expense 4.40 - -
Profit before income tax 650,600,602 375,641,167
Income tax expense 441 207,807,675 110,998,683

Current tax 181,601,111 104,077,283

Deferred tax income 26,206,564 6,921,400
Profit for the period 442,192,928 264,649,084
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the bank 442,792,928 264,649,084
Non-controlling interest - -
Profit for the period 442,192,928 264,649,084
Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share 57.25 34.22
Diluted earnings per Share 571.25 34.22

Raju Mahat Chhetri Hem Kumar Kafle Subodh Lohani
Manager Officiating Chief Executive Officer Director

Finance and Accounts Department

Yagya Prakash Neupane
Director

Rita Paudel
Director

Date  :2076.09.10
Place  :Kathmandu

Naresh Man Pradhan
Independent Director

Dr. Vrigu Rishi Duwadi
Director

Ramesh Kumar Raghubanshi
Director

Deepak Khanal
Chairman
As per our report of even date

Sudarshan Raj Pandey
Senior Partner
S.R Pandey & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2076

Particulars

Notes

2075-176
NPR

2074-75
NPR

Profit for the period

442,792,928

264,649,084

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

* Gains/(losses) from investment in equity instruments measured at fair value

* Gains/(losses) on revaluation

* Acturial gain/(losses) on defined benefit plans

(26,089,180)

(5,350,464)

* Income tax relating to above items

7,826,754

1,605,139

Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(18,262,426)

(3,745,325)

b) ltems that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

* Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

* Exchange gains/(losses)(arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)

* Income tax relating to above items

* Reclassify to profit or loss

Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

c) Share of other comprehensive income of associate accounted as per equity method

Other comprehensive income for the period, net of Income Tax

(18,262,426)

(3,745,325)

Total comprehensive income for the period

424,530,502

260,903,759

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank

424,530,502

260,903,759

Non-controlling interest

Total Comprehensive income for the period

424,530,502

260,903,759

Raju Mahat Chhetri
Manager
Finance and Accounts Department

Yagya Prakash Neupane
Director

Rita Paudel
Director

Date  :2076.09.10
Place  :Kathmandu
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Hem Kumar Kafle
Officiating Chief Executive Officer

Naresh Man Pradhan
Independent Director

Dr. Vrigu Rishi Duwadi
Director

Subodh Lohani
Director

Ramesh Kumar Raghubanshi
Director

Deepak Khanal
Chairman
As per our report of even date

Sudarshan Raj Pandey
Senior Partner
S.R Pandey & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Statement of Cash Flows

As on 31st Ashad 2076
Particulars 20&;;6 20#;‘75
Cash flows from operating activities
Interest Received 1,680,896,219 1,152,116,239
Fee and other income received 262,376,329 127,692,732
Dividend Received - -
Receipts from other operating activities - -
Interest paid (864,678 424) (541,810,661)
Commission and fee paid (773,835) (196,515)
Cash payments to employee (310,307,297) (275,255,783)
Other expense paid (91,463,077) (68,383,054)
Operating cash flows before change in operating assets and liabilities 676,049,915 394,162,958
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets (4,104,791,726) (2,347,991,120)
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Placement with bank and financial institutions
Other Trading assets
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions - -
Loan and advances to customer (4,093,785,477) (2,471,782,413)
Other Assets (11,006,248) 123,785,293
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities 3,504,098,917 2,361,651,066
Due to bank and financial institutions 2,128,099,548 1,585,975,584
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank (941,864) (1,296,664)
Deposits from customers 1,414,397,604 736,766,279
Borrowings - -
Other Liabilities (37,456,370) 40,205,867
Net Cash flow from operating activities before tax paid 15,351,107 407,816,904
Income taxes paid (193,552,330) (111,905,897)
Net Cash flow from operating activities (118,195,223) 295,911,007
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investment securities
Receipts from sale of investment securities - -
Purchase of plant and equipment (22,109,760) (15,397,012)
Receipt from sale of property and equipment 71,433 390,258
Purchase of intangible assets (52,000) 202,975
Receipt from sale of intangible assets
Purchase of investment properties
Receipt from the sale of investment properties
Interest received
Dividend received
Net cash used in investing activities (22,154,321) (14,803,779)
Cash flows from financing activities
Receipt from issue of debt securities
Repayment of debt securities
Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liabilities
Receipt from issue of shares - -
Dividend paid (70,310,040) (90,918,155)
Interest paid - -
Other receipt/payment - -
Net cash from financing activities (70,310,040) (90,918,155)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (210,659,591) 190,189,073
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Shrawan 01, 2075/2074 602,715,478 412,526,405
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held - -
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 392,055,887 602,715,478
Raju Mahat Chhetri Hem Kumar Kafle Subodh Lohani
Manager Officiating Chief Executive Officer Director

Finance and Accounts Department

Yagya Prakash Neupane
Director

Rita Paudel
Director

Date  :2076.09.10
Place  :Kathmandu
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Naresh Man Pradhan
Independent Director

Dr. Vrigu Rishi Duwadi
Director
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Ramesh Kumar Raghubanshi
Director

Deepak Khanal
Chairman
As per our report of even date

Sudarshan Raj Pandey
Senior Partner
S.R Pandey & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 Ashad 2076

(As per NRB Regulation)
Particulars 31 Ashadh 2076 32 Ashadh 2075
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 442,792,928 264,649,084
Appropriations:
a. General reserve (84,769,318)
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund -
c. Capital redemption reserve
d. Corporate social responsibility fund (3,017,613)
e. Employees' training fund (2,613,726)
f. Client's Protection Fund (49,087,354)
g. Other-Employee Welfare Fund (1,500,000)
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 301,804,917 264,649,084
Regulatory adjustment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) (43,919,048)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)
¢. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+)
e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+)
f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)
g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+)
h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+)
i. Other (+/-)
Distributable profit or (loss) 257,885,869 264,649,084
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
For the year ended 31° Ashad, 2076

1.  General Information

Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited is a National Level Microfinance Institution domiciled in Nepal, registered as a Public Limited Company
under Companies Act 2063 &banking and Financial Institution Act, 2063. The registered address of the microfinance is located at Narayangarh,
Chitwan Nepal. Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited is listed on Nepal Stock Exchange and is trading under the code “DDBL’. Deprosc is
involved in deprived sector lending in national level.

2. Basis of Preparation
2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by the Accounting
Standards Board of Nepal on 13™ September 2013.

NFRS conform, in all material respect, to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB).

2.2 Reporting Period and Approval of financial statement
The Microfinance follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar.

The accompanied financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on its meeting held on Poush09, 2076 and have been
recommended for adoption by shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

2.3 Functional and Presentation currency
Financial statements are denominated in Nepalese Rupees, which is the functional and presentation currency of the Microfinance.
24 Use of Estimates, assumption and judgments

The Microfinance, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its circumstances and operating environment.
Further, the Microfinance is required to make judgement in respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or
assumption to be followed could materially affect the financial statements. Later on this may be determined that a different choice could have
been more appropriate.

NFRS requires the Microfinance to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial statements.

The Microfinanceapplies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial statements. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed periodically. Revision to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates is revised,and are applied
prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant section of the notes wherever the estimates have been applied along
with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if any.

2.5 Changes in Accounting policies

There has been no significant change in the accounting policies adopted by the microfinance except where required due to adoption of Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards.

2.6  New standards in issue but not yet effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, upto the date of issuance of the Microfinance’s financial statements
are disclosed below. The Microfinance intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

v" IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments having expected credit loss modelhas been issued and effective from 1%t January 2018 internationallybut
is not yet pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS
32 Financial Instruments, Presentation, NAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurements and NFRS 7 Financial
Instruments — Disclosures have been applied.

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued by IASB after the
pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates them within
NFRS.

O%  3eRY alffics ATENRUT AT 31.d. Q00Y/ 006
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2.1

2.8

29

A significant impact on classification and measurement including impairment of financial instruments, will arise as a result of
application of [FRS 9.

New Standards and Interpretation not adopted
Although IFRS 9 is applicable internationally from 1%t of January 2018, it has not been applied as it is yet to be adopted by ICAN.

Further the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) has provided carve out on various standards with different time frame; some of
which are compulsory and others optional for banks and financial institutions. The list of carve-out and its compliance status while preparation
of financial statement of the microfinance is as given below:

NFRS 10 : Consolidated Financial Statements-Preparation of consolidated financial statement using uniform accounting policies is necessary
unless it is impracticable to do so- Optional-up to FY 2019-20-This carve out has no implication to the Microfinance as it does not have any
subsidiaries.

NAS 28 : Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
Accounting for Investment in Associates as per equity method using uniform accounting policies Optional-up to FY 2019-20-Not applicable
NAS 34 : Interim Financial Reporting

Impracticable to restate the corresponding previous interim period information-Optional-up to FY 2018-19-The Microfinance has utilized this
carve out.

NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement- Incurred Loss Model to measure the Impairment Loss on Loan and Advances
or impairment provision as per Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) directive whichever is higher- compulsory-up to FY 2019-20. The Microfinance loans
and advances are greater as per NRB Directive as compared to NFRS. Therefore, loans and advances are impaired as per NRB Directive.

NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement-Impracticability to determine transaction cost of all previous years which is the
part of effective interest rate-Optional-up to FY 2018-19-TheMicrofinancehas utilized this carve out.

NAS 39 : Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement- Impracticability to determine interest income on amortized cost Optional-up to
FY 2019-20-The Microfinancehas utilized this carve out.

Discounting
Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the discounting is material.
Limitation of NFRS implementation

If the information is not available and the cost to develop would exceed the benefit derived, such exception to NFRS implementation has been
noted and disclosed in respective section.

Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1

3.2

3.3

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for available —for-sale investments, assets held for sale and
discontinued operations, other financial assets and liabilities held for trading and financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL), all of which have been measured at fair value.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis where the accounting policies and judgements as required by the
standards are consistently used and in case of deviations disclosed specifically.

Basis of Consolidation

The Microfinancedoes not have control over any other entity for consolidation of Financial Statements. Investments in Shares made by the
Microfinance are financial investments and have been described under 4.8 in Notes.

Cash & Cash Equivalent

The fair value of cash is the carrying amount. Cash and cash equivalent represent the amount of cash in hand, balances with other banks
and financial institutions, money at short notice and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the
acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their value and used by the Microfinance in the management of short-term
commitment.

31GRY alffcs JTENRUT JaTl 3N.d. Q00Y/00G 99
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3.4 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
3.4.1 Recognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans and advances to customers and balances due to customers, are initially
recognised on the trade datei.e. the date that the Microfinance becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This
includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place. Loans and advances to customers are recognised when funds are transferred
to the customers’ account at fair value inclusive of transaction costs. The Microfinance recognises due to customer balances when
funds reach the microfinance.

3.4.2 Classification
The Microfinance classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:
v' Financial assets and liabilities held for trading

The Microfinance classifies financial assets or financial liabilities as held for trading when they have been purchased or issued
primarily for short term profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are
managed together for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit taking. Included in this classification are
Government bonds, NRB Bonds, Domestic Corporate bonds, Treasury bills, Equities etc. held primarily for the trading purpose.

v' Financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been designated by management upon
initial recognition. Management may only designate an instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition when one of the following
criteria are met, and designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

J The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring
the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis

Or

o The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities, or both, which are managed, and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy

Or

J The financial instrument contains one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not significantly modify the cash
flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar instrument is
first considered that separation of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited.

v" Loans and receivables to Customers

After initial measurement, loans and advances to customers are subsequently measured at amortisation over the period of loan.
This practice is almost nearer to the effective interest method prescribed by NFRS. The method has been adopted as the cost for
computation for interest on effective interest method is huge in terms of benefits to be received from the computation in the short
run.

v' Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the
Microfinance's management has the intention and ability to hold to maturity.

v' Available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale assets are those non-derivative financial assets intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may
be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in interest rates, exchange rates, commodity prices or equity prices.

v' Financial liabilities held at amortised cost

Financial liabilitiesnot classified held at fair value through profit or loss includes borrowings which are classified as amortised
cost instruments.

3.4.3 Measurement
v' Initial measurement

All financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction cost except in the case of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

US  31oRf aiffico ATENRUT JaT 31.d. 200Y/066
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3.4.4

3.4.5

3.4.6

v' Subsequent measurement

Financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value, with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value taken directly to the statement of profit or loss. Interest and dividend income or expense
is recorded in revenueaccording to the terms of the contract, or when the right to payment has been established.

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value, with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
taken to Other Comprehensive Income.The Microfinance makes irrevocable election to route fair value changes through Other
Comprehensive Income. Gain/Loss on equity instruments classified as fair value through other comprehensive income is charged
directly to equity and impact of re-measurement is shown in OCI.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Within this category
loans and advances to the customers have been recognised at amortised cost using the method that very closely approximates
effective interest rate method. The losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognised in the income statement
within credit loss expense. If the Microfinance were to sell or reclassify more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity
investments before maturity (other than in certain specific circumstances), the entire category would be taintedand would have
to be reclassified as available-for-sale.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost, with any difference between proceeds net of directly attributable
transaction costs and the redemption value recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or where the Microfinance has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. If substantially all the risks and rewards have been neither retained nor
transferred and the Microfinance has retained control, the assets continue to be recognised to the extent of the Microfinance’s continuing
involvement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit
or loss.

Determination of Fair Value

Assets and liabilities carried at fair value or for which fair values are disclosed have been classified into three levels according to the
observability of the significant inputs used to determine the fair values. Changes in the observability of significant valuation inputs
during the reporting period may result in a transfer of assets and liabilities within the fair value hierarchy. The Microfinance recognises
transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy when there is a significant change in either its principal market or the level of
observability of the inputs to the valuation techniques as at the end of the reporting period.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar
instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation, is not based
on observable market data.

Impairment of Loans and Advances

The Microfinance reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each Reporting date to assess whether an impairment loss
should be provided in the Statement of Profit or loss. In particular, the Management’s judgment is required in the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the impairment loss. These estimates are based on assumptions about a
number of factors and hence actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provisions made.

The individual impairment provision applies to financial assets evaluated individually forimpairment and is based on Management’s
best estimate of the present value of the future cash flows that are expected to be received. In estimating these cash flows, Management
makes judgments about a borrower’s financial situation and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral. Each impaired asset
is assessed on its merits, and the workout strategy and estimate of cash flows considered recoverable.

Individual assessment of impairment of exposures means establishing whether objective evidence of impairment exists, estimation
of the present value of future cash flows, and calculation of the value of impairment for each individual receivable from the borrower
included in this assessment.
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The microfinance has considered all loans and advances above NRs. 5 lacsfor individual assessment of impairment. The microfinance
determines, for each individual loan to be assessed for individual impairment, whether they expect to collect their receivables from
expected future cash flows (going concern) or from collateral realization (gone concern). If a microfinance identifies objective evidence
of impairment, the microfinance indicates, at single debtor level, the most realistic sources of repayment (collection approach/strategy)
based on all available information regarding such borrower’s financial position and performances. The microfinanceassesses whether
collection will be made from the borrower ™ s expected future operating cash flows (borrower continues to perform business activities —
going concern) or on the basis of collateral enforcement and realization (expectation that the borrower ceases to exist — gone concern).
In both cases, microfinance uses conservative assumptions relating to the estimation of the expected cash flows, taking into account
current economic conditions and the Microfinance’s own economic forecasts.

When estimating impairment based on collateral realization, the recoverable amount is the present value of the net inflow from collateral
realization (taking into account the priority of claims), discounted by applying the original effective interest rate to the expected time to
realization. A collective impairment provision is established for:

. Groups of homogeneous loans and advances that are not considered individually significant; and
. Groups of assets that are individually significant but that were not found to be individually impaired

The collective provision for groups of homogeneous loans is established using statistical methods based on historical loss rate experience,
Loss Given Default (LGD) and Probability of Default (PD) computed using the statistical analysis of historical data on delinquency to
estimate the amount of loss for each class of portfolio selected on the basis of its product, risk factor, collateral coverage, exposure group
etc. Managementapplies judgment to ensure that the estimate of loss arrived at, on the basis of historical information is appropriately
adjusted to reflect the economic conditionsand portfolio factors as at the Reportingdate. The loss rates are regularly reviewedagainst
actual loss experience.

In assessing the need for collectiveimpairment, Management considersfactors such as credit quality (forexample, loan to collateral ratio,
level ofrestructured performing loans), portfolio Size, concentrations and economic factors.

To estimate the required allowance,assumptions are made to define howinherentlosses are modelled and todetermine the required
input parameters,based on historical experience and currenteconomic conditions.The accuracy of the provision depends onthe model
assumptions and parametersused in determining the collective provision.

As stated in table above, the microfinance loans and advances isgreater considering the NRB directive as compared to NFRS impairment
provisioning.Therefore, provisioning as per NRB directive is applied.

3.4.7 Impairment of Financiallnvestments — Available-for-Sale

The Microfinance also records impairmentcharges on available-for-sale equityinvestments whenthere has been asignificant or prolonged
decline in thefair value below their cost along with thehistorical share price movements, durationand extent up to which the fair value of
an investment is less than its cost.

Refer Note 4.8 for details.
3.4.8 Impairment of Non-FinancialAssets

The Microfinance assesses whether there areany indicators of impairment for an assetor a cash generating unit (CGU) at eachReporting
date or more frequently, if eventsor changes in circumstances necessitateto do so. This requires the estimation ofthe ‘Value in use’ of
such individual assetsor the CGUs. Estimating ‘Value in use'requires the Management to make anestimate of the expected future cash
flowsfrom the asset or the CGU and also toselect a suitable discount rate in order tocalculate the present value of the relevantcash
flows. This valuation requires theMicrofinance to make estimates about expectedfuture cash flows and discount rates andhence, they
are subject to uncertainty.

3.5 Trading Assets

Trading as sets are those assets that the microfinance acquires principally for the purpose of selling in the near term or holds as part of
a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit shall be presented under this account head. The other trading as set includes
non-derivative financial assets. It includes Government bonds, NRB Bonds, Domestic Corporate bonds, Treasury bills, Equities etc. held
primarily for the trading purpose.

3.6 Derivatives Assets and Derivative Liabilities
Microfinance doesn’t deal with any derivative financial instruments.
3.7 Property and Equipment

All propertyand equipmentare stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the assets.
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3.8

3.9

3.10

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Microfinance and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Freehold land is not depreciated although it is subject to impairment testing. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight- line
method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

»  Computer and Accessories 5 Years
»  Furniture and Fixtures 7 Years
> Vault 10 Years
> Solar Equipment 3 Years
> \Vehicles 8 Years
> Motorcycle 6 Years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of financial position date. The value
of the assets fully depreciated but continued to be in use is considered not material.

Revision of useful life of motorcycle has been done from 8 years (in previous year) to 6 years. Since, the revision of useful life is change in
estimate as per NAS 08, the change has been prospectively applied.

At each reporting date, assets are also assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event that an asset’s carrying amount is determined to be
greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written down immediately to the recoverable amount.

Assets with costs less than NPR 3,000 are charged off on purchase as revenue expenditure.

Gains and losses on disposals are included in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

The life of motors cycle has been reduced to 6 years from 8 years considered till last year. This is considered as changed in estimates has
impacted this year profit by Nrs. 1,114,789.

Intangible assets

Acquired Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at fair value, which reflects market expectations of the probability that the future economic benefits
embodied in the asset will flow to the Microfinance and are amortised on the basis of their expected useful lives.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. Costs
associated with the development of software are capitalised where it is probable that it will generate future economic benefits in excess of
its cost. Computer software costs are amortised over the period of 5 years in Straight Line method (SLM). Costs associated with maintaining
software are recognised as an expense as incurred.

At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event that an asset’s carrying amount is determined to
be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written down immediately.

Investment Property

Land or Land and Building other than those classified as property and equipment and non-current assets held for sale under relevant accounting
standard are presented under this account head. The Non-banking Assets acquired by the company is classified as assets held for sale and
presented under investment property.

Further land which is rented and held for capital appreciation motive is classified as investment property. Non-banking Assets which are not
intended to be sold within a period of next one year is also classified as Investment Property. The microfinancedoes not have any investment
property.

Income Tax
3.10.1 Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid to,
the taxation authorities of Nepal. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively
enacted, by the reporting date in Nepal.The liabilities recognised for the purpose of current Income tax, including fees, penalties are
included under this head.

3.10.2 Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rate applicable to the
Microfinance as at the reporting date which is expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred tax relating to items which are charged or credited directly to equity, is credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently
recognised in the statement of profit or loss together with the deferred gain or loss.

3.11 Deposits, Debt securities issued and subordinate Liabilities

The deposits held by the microfinance on behalf of its customers are classified as financial liabilities and measured at amortised cost under
effective interest method. The microfinance does not have any debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities.

3.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised in respect of present obligations arising from past events where it is probable that outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligations and they can be reliably estimated.

3.13 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Microfinance and the revenue can be reliably
measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised.

3.13.1 Interest Income

Interest Income include interest income on loan and advance, investment securities except on those investment securities measure at
fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalent, due from Nepal Rastra Bank, due from BFIs, loan and advances to staff etc.

Interest income on loans and advances is recognized on amortised principal which is nearer to the effective interest method suggested
by NFRS. The adoption of effective interest method is not possible due to constraints of time, effort and cost in short term compared
to the benefits it provides. Benefit of carve-out bas been applied to this effect. Interest of loans and advances which are significantly
impaired are not recognized.

Interest income on government bond, treasury bills and bank balances are recognized under effective interest method.
3.13.2 Fees and commissions

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided or significant act performed.
Service Fee Income/Expenses are recognized on accrual basis unless it is impracticable to recognize as allowed through carve-out on
NFRS.

3.13.3 Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the Microfinance’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when the
shareholders approve the dividend.

3.13.4 Net Trading Income

Net trading income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value and the related interest income or expense and dividends,
for financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading.

3.13.5 Net income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss are
included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Contractual interest income and expense on financial
instruments held at fair value through profit or loss is recognised within net interest income.

3.14 Interest Expense

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest bearing financial assets classified as available-for-sale and financial
instruments designated at FVTPL, interest expense is recorded using the EIR unless it is impracticable.

3.15 Employee Benefits
3.15.1 Retirement Benefits
The Microfinance has schemes of retirement benefits namely Gratuity, Provident Fund.
Retirement benefit obligations

The microfinance operates a defined contribution plans as provident fund contribution.
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Provident Fund

For Provident Fund, the microfinance pays contributions to the publicly administered provident fund plans (named Employee Provident
Fund) on a mandatory basis, and such amounts are charged to operating expenses. The microfinance has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid.

Gratuity

The new Labour Act 2074 is applicable from Bhadra 19, 2074 which requires payment of minimum Gratuity of at least 8.33% of basic
salary to all staff (equal to one-month salary per year) which is in the nature of defined contribution plan. Amendment of employees bye
laws and approval of such byelaws from Nepal Rastra Bank has not yet been done. Hence, the microfinance has been providing gratuity
as per its employees bye laws and depositing such amount in Citizens Investment Trust which is in the nature of defined benefit plan.
Therefore, actuarial valuation has been conducted and provided accordingly.

Accumulated Leave

The Microfinance provides accumulated leave benefit under its staff byelaw. The Home Leave is accumulated up to 60 days and there
is no limit for the accumulation of Sick Leave.

Accumulated leave benefits are treated as long term benefit liability. Accumulated leave obligations are estimated on the basis of
actuarial valuation. Long term benefit liability are not subject to same degree of uncertainty as defined benefit plan. Therefore re-
measurement gain/(loss) on accumulated leave is charged to Profit and Loss account as on Ashad end 2076.

The microfinance has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

3.15.2 Staff Bonus

3.16

Provision for bonus has been made at 10% of net profit before such bonus computed as per Regulatory books.
Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement and requires
an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

v" Microfinance as a lessee

Leases that do not transfer to the Microfinance substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased
items are operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

v" Microfinance as a lessor

Leases where the Microfinance does not transfer substantially all of the risk and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified
as operating leases. Rental income is recorded as earned based on the contractual terms of the lease in other operating income.

3.17 Foreign Currency Translation

3.18

3.19

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the NPR using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit or loss, except when recognised in other comprehensive income. Non-
monetary assets that are measured at fair value are translated using exchange rate at the date that fair value was determined.

Financial Guarantee and Loan Commitment

In the ordinary course of business, the Microfinance issues performance guarantees, bid bond guarantees and advance payment guarantee.
These guarantees are initially disclosed in the financial statement (within ‘contingent liabilities’) at guaranteed value. The premium received is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in net fees and commission income on a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee.

Share Capital and Reserves
3.19.1 Share Capital

Financial instruments issued are classified as equity when there is no contractual obligation to transfer cash, other financial assets or
issue available number of own equity instruments. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity
as deduction net of taxes from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared.
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The share issue expenses which can be avoided for the issue was charged in the year of issue directly through equity and disclosed in
statement of changes in equity. Tax impact is also disclosed.

3.19.2 Reserves

The reserves include regulatory and free reserves.

v

General Reserve

20% of the net profit computed as per regulatory books is set aside to general reserve until the reserve is twice the paid of share
capital as per banking Financial Institutions Act. The reserve is the accumulation of setting aside profits over the years.

No Dividend (either cash dividend or bonus share) are distributed from the amount in General/ Statutory Reserve.
Exchange Equalisation Reserve

25% of the revaluation gain on foreign currency computed as per Regulatory books is set aside to exchange equalisation reserve
as per banking Financial Institutions Act.

The Reserve is cushion against adverse movement in foreign currency.
Assets Revaluation Reserve

Any Reserve created from revaluation of assets (such as Property & Equipment, Intangible Assets, Investment Property) shall be
presented under this heading. The Microfinance has followed cost model therefore no assets revaluation reserve is created.

Capital Reserve

The capital reserve represents the amount of those reserves which are in nature of capital and which shall not be available for
distribution of cash dividend. The amount from share forfeiture due to non-payment of remaining amount for the unpaid shares,
capital grants received in cash or kind, capital reserve arising out of merger and acquisition etc are presented under this heading.

Special Reserve

Any special reserve that is created as per the specific requirement of NRB directive or special instruction of NRB are represented
as special reserve. The amount allocated to this reserve by debiting retained earning account are presented under this heading.

Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

The fund created as per NRB Directive for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating 1% of Net profit computed
as per Regulatory books is presented under this account head.

Employee Training Fund

The fund created for the purpose of employee training by allocating 3% of employee expenses of previous year excluding staff
bonus and winding up interest cost on staff loan. The fund is utilized for the training of employees excluding CEO.

Investment Adjustment Reserve

It is a reserve created on investment such as investment in subsidiary or unlisted investment in equity for more than two years
as per the investment directive of Nepal Rastra Bank.

Regulatory Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Microfinance to this reserve as per the Directive of NRB
for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be regarded as free for distribution of dividend
(cash as well as bonus shares) shall be presented under this account head. The regulatory reserve of the microfinance includes
the reserve net of tax created relating to Accrued Interest Receivable as on Ashad End 2076 not recovered till Shrawan End 2076,
Reserve on Deferred Tax Assets, Non-Banking Assets, reduction in fair value of investment in equity below cost price, actuarial
loss etc.

Fair Value Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Microfinance to this reserve as per the Directive of NRB
for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be regarded as free for distribution of dividend
(cash as well as bonus shares) shall be presented under this account head. The fair value reserve of the microfinance includes
the reserve net of tax created relating to Market Value of Share investment.

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Microfinance both positive or negative to this reserve as per
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the Directive of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be regarded as free
for distribution of dividend (cash as well as bonus shares) shall be presented under this account head. This reserve includes
actuarial gain/(loss) net of tax on defined benefit plan and can be negative.

v" Client Protection Fund

Client protection fund is created at 1% of net profit as per Regulatory books. Further 25% of cash divided in excess of 20% of
paid up capital is also allocated to this fund. Micro Protection fund and Loanee Welfare fund are also transferred to this fund.

v" Other reserve

Any reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose (except stated in above) are presented under thus by disclosing
accounting heads.

3.20 Earnings per share

The Microfinance measures earning per share on the basis of the earning attributable to the equity shareholders for the period. The number of
shares is taken as the weighted average number of shares for the relevant period as required by NAS 33 - Earnings Per Share.

There are no instruments, such as convertibles, that would require dilution of EPS, therefore diluted EPS has not been computed and disclosed.
3.21 Segmental Reporting

The Microfinance’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 Operating Segments. Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the microfinance’s management, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments. All transactions between business segments are conducted on an arm’s length basis, with intra-
segment revenue and costs being eliminated in Head Office. Income and expenses directlyassociated with each segment are included in
determining business segment performance.

The Microfinance has determined segments based on thedistrict of operation by the management for decision making purpose. Such segmental
information has been provided under Disclosures & Additional Information (Point No. 5.3).

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty amounted to 10% or more of the microfinance’s total revenue in
any of the periods reported.

3.22 Interim Financial Reporting

Interim reports corresponding to the financial statements had been reported in accordance with the regulatory reporting requirements. Those
statements have been published quarterly in national level newspaper. The microfinance has utilized the benefits provided by Carve-out on
NFRS for reinstatement of earlier year figures.

Schedules to Financial Statement

4.1 Cash and cash equivalent

Particulars 31-03-2076 32-03-2075
Cash in Hand 11,203,439 5,976,469
Balances with B/Fis 342,999,548 279,524,022
Money at call and short notice 37,852,901 317,214,987
Other - -
Total 392,055,887 602,715,478
4.2 Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Particulars 31-03-2076 32-03-2075

Statutory balances with NRB

Securities purchased under resale agreement

Other deposit and receivable from NRB

Total
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4.3 Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Placement with domestic B/Fls

Placement with Foreign B/FIs

Less: Allowances for impairement

Total

4.4 Derivative Financial Instruments

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Held for trading

Interest rate swap

Currency Swap

Forward exchange contract

Others

Held for risk management

Interest rate swap

Currency Swap

Forward exchange contract

Others

Total

4.5 Other Trading assets

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Treasury Bills

Government bond

NRB bonds

Domestic Corporate bonds

Equities

Other

Total

Pledged

Non- Pledged

4.6 Loans and advances to B/Fls

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Loan to Microfinance Institutions

Other

Less: Allowances for Impairment

Total

4.6.1 Allowances for Impairment

Particulars

2075-76

2074-75

Balance as at Shrawan 1

Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year

Recoveries/Reversal

Amount written off

Balance as at Ashad end
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4.7 Loans and advances to customers

Particulars 31-03-2076 32-03-2075
Loans and advances measured at amortized cost 12,224,365,840 8,086,661,315
Less: Impairment allowances
Individual Impairment (70,067,434) (45,783,066)
Portfolio Impairment (60,928,659) (78,560,517)
Net amount 12,093,369,748 1,962,317,732
Loan and advances measured at FVTPL - -
Total 12,093,369,748 1,962,317,7132
4.1.1 Analysis of loan and advances - By product
Particulars 31-03-2076 32-03-2075
Product
Agriculture 6,939,547,120 654,753,000
Small & Cottage Industry 1,026,389,940 108,779,000
Service Industry 4,002,211,940 6,835,514,000
Wholesaler Lending - -
Others 128,477,802 403,795,325
Sub-total 12,096,626,802 8,002,841,325
Interest Receivable 127,739,038 83,819,990
Grand Total 12,224,365,840 8,086,661,315
4.1.2 Analysis of loan and advances - By Currency
Particulars 31-03-2076 32-03-2075
Nepalese Rupee 12,224,365,840 8,086,661,315
Indian Rupee
United States Dollar
Great Britain Pound
Euro
Japanese Yen
Chinese Yuan
Other
Grand Total 12,224,365,840 8,086,661,315
4.1.3 Allowances for Impairment
Particulars 31-03-2076 32-03-2075
Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 45,783,066 29,330,637
Impairment loss for the year: 24,284,368 16,452,429
Charge for the year 24,284 368
Recoveries/reversal during the year 16,452,429
Write- offs -
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency
QOther movement
Balance at Ashad end 70,067,434 45,783,066
Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 78,560,517 54,948 442
Impairment loss for the year: (17,631,858) 23,612,075
Charge/(reversal) for the year (17,631,858) 23,612,075
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency = -
QOther movement -
Balance at Ashad end 60,928,659 18,560,517
Total allowances for impairment 130,996,093 124,343,583
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4.8 Investment in securities

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Investment securities designated at FVTPL

Investment securities measured at amortized cost

Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI

2,010,000

2,010,000

Total

2,010,000

2,010,000

4.8.1 Investment in securities measured at amortized cost

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Debt Securities

Government Bond

Government treasury bills

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank deposit instruments

Other

Less: Specific allowances for impairment

Total

4.8.2 Investment in equity measured at fair value through other Other comprehensive income

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Equity Instrument

Quoted equity securities

Unquoted equity securities

2,010,000

2,010,000

Total

2,010,000

2,010,000

4.8.3 Information relating to investment in equities

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Cost

Fair Value

Cost

Fair Value

Investment in Unquoted equity

Center for Microfinance PVT LTD

100 Ordinary share of Rs 100 fully paid

10,000

10,000

10,000

10,000

Nepal Finsoft Company Limited

200,000 Ordinary share of Rs 100 fully paid

2,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

Subtotal

2,010,000

2,010,000

2,010,000

2,010,000

Grand Total

2,010,000

2,010,000

2,010,000

2,010,000

Note: *Refers to Dividend Declared during last three years

4.9 Current tax Assets/Liability

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Current tax assets

200,773,034

108,006,047

Current year Income Tax Assets

200,773,034

108,006,047

Tax Assets of Prior Periods

Current tax liabilities

181,601,111

100,785,343

Current year Income Tax Liabilities

181,601,111

100,785,343

Tax Liabilities of Prior Periods

181,601,111

100,785,343

Total of income tax assets/(liabilities)

19,171,923

1,220,104
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4.10 Investment In subsidiaries

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries

Total Investment

Less: Impairment Allowances

Net Carrying Amount

4.10.1 Investment In quoted subsidiaries

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Cost Fair Value Cost

Fair Value

s Ltd

.......shares of Rs.... Each

e, Ltd

......shares of Rs.... Each

Total

4.10.2 Investment In unquoted subsidiaries

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Cost Fair Value Cost

Fair Value

s Ltd

.......shares of Rs.... Each

s Ltd

......shares of Rs.... Each

Total

4.10.3 Information relating to subsidiaries of the bank

Particulars

Percentage of owneship

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

e Ltd

s Ltd

4.10.4: Non Controlling Interest of the Subsidiaries

Group

31-03-2076

Equity Interest held by NCI (%)

Profit (Loss) allocated during the year

Accumulated Balances of NCI as on Ashad End

Dividend Paid to NCI

32-03-2075

Equity Interest held by NCI (%)

Profit (Loss) allocated during the year

Accumulated Balances of NCI as on Ashad End

Dividend Paid to NCI
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4.11 Investment In associates

31-03-2076 32-03-2075
Particulars
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Investment in Quoted associates - - -
Investment in Unquoted associates - - -
Total Investment - - -
Less: Impairment Allowances
Net Carrying Amount - - -
4.11.1 Investment In quoted associates
. 31-03-2076 32-03-2075
Particulars - -
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
e e— Ltd
.....shares of Rs.... Each - - -
s Ltd
.......shares of Rs.... Each - - -
Total - - -
4.11.2 Investment In unquoted associates
31-03-2076 32-03-2075
Particulars
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Total - - -
4.11.3 Information relating to associates of the bank
Percentage of owneship
Particulars
31-03-2076 32-03-2075
4.11.4: Equity value of associates
) Group
Particulars
31-03-2076 32-03-2075

Nepal Clearing House Limited
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4.12 Investment Properties

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Investment Properties measured at Fair Value

Balance as on Shrwawan 01

Addition/(Disposal) during the year

Net Changes in fair value during the year

Adjustment/Transfer

Net Amount

Investment Properties measured at Cost

Balance as on Shrwawan 01

Addition/(Disposal) during the year

Adjustment/Transfer

Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated impairment loss

Net Amount

Total

4.13 Property and Equipment

Particulars

Leasehold
Properties

Computer &
Accessories

Vehicles

Furniture &
Fixtures

Machinery

Equipment &

others

Total Ashad
end 2076

Cost

Balance as on Ashad end 2075

14,450,002

41,454,491

16,505,336

2,820,184

- | 81,230,014

Addition during the Year

14,123,073

1,386,687 -

- | 22,109,760

Acquisition

14,723,073

7,386,687 -

- | 22,109,760

Capitalization

Disposal during the year

Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Ashad end 2076

14,450,002

62,177,564

23,892,024

2,820,184

- | 103,339,174

Depreciation and Impairment

As on Ashad end 2075

11,094,680

32,218,372

6,079,408

1,156,584

- | 50,549,045

Depreciation charge for the year

1,670,874

4,319,422

1,753,247

370,983

- 8,114,525

Impairment for the year

Disposals

Adjustment

As on Ashad end 2076

12,765,554

36,937,194

1,832,655

1,521,561

- | 958,663,570

Capital Work in Progress 2075

Capital Work in Progress 2076

Net Book Value

As on Ashad end 2075

3,395,322

15,236,119

10,425,928

1,663,600

- | 30,680,969

As on Ashad end 2076

1,684,449

25,639,770

16,059,369

1,292,617

- | 44,676,204

4.14 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Particulars

Goodwill

Software

Purchased

Developed

Other

Total Ashad end

Cost

Balance as on Ashad end 2075

3,225,290

3,225,290

Addition during the Year

Acquisition

52,000

52,000

Capitalization
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Particulars Goodwill SORUATe Other Total Ashad end
Purchased Developed

Disposal during the year - - - -

Adjustment/Revaluation - - - -

Balance as on Ashad end 2076 3,271,290 - - 3,271,290

Amortisation and Impairment

As on Ashad end 2075 2,352,505 - - 2,352,505

Impairment for the year - - - - -

Amortisation charge for the year - 222,218 - - 222,218

Disposals - - - -

Adjustment - - - -

As on Ashad end 2076 - 2,574,123 - - 2,574,123

Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value

As on Ashad end 2075 - 872,185 - - 872,185

As on Ashad end 2076 - 102,567 - - 102,567
4.15 Deferred Taxes Assets/(Liabilities)

32-03-2075
Particulars Deferred Tax Assets | Deferred Tax Liabilities
Net Deferred Tax

Assets /(Liabilities)

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items

Loans and Advances to BFls

Loans and Advances to Customers - (25,145,997) (25,145,997)
Investment Properties - - -
Investment Securities - (3,000 (3,000)
Investment In Associates - - -
Property and Equipment 5,167,017 5,167,017
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan - (5,198,142) (5,198,142)
Employees' Leave Liability 11,528,834 - 11,528,834
Lease Liabilities 103,044 - 103,044
Provisions LLP - - -
Other Temporary Differences - -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 16,798,895 (30,347,139) (13,548,244)
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses - - -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - -
Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as on year end of 2074/75 (13,548,244)
Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as on Shrawan 01, 2074 8,231,983
Origination/(Reversal) during the year (5,316,261)
Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized in profit or loss (6,921,400)
Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income 1,605,139

Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized directly in equity
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31-03-2076
Particulars Deferred Tax Assets | Deferred Tax Liabilities | Net Deferred Tax
Assets /(Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items - - -
Loans and Advances to BFls - - -
Loans and Advances to Customers - (38,321,711) (38,321,711)
Investment Properties - - -
Investment Securities - - -
Investment In Associates - - -
Property and Equipment - (1,062,961) (1,062,961)
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan - (6,245,549) (6,245,549)
Employees' Leave Liability 13,579,981 - 13,579,981
Lease Liabilities 122,186 - 122,186
Provisions LLP - - -
Other Temporary Differences -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 13,702,167 (45,630,221) (31,928,054)
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses - - -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - -
Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as on year end of 2075/76 (31,928,054)
Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as on Shrawan 01, 2075 13,548,244
Origination/(Reversal) during the year (18,379,810)
Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized in profit or loss (26,206,564)
Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income 7,826,754
Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized directly in equity -
4.16 Other Assets
Particulars 31-03-2076 32-03-2075
Assets held for Sale . -
(Other Non-Banking Assets - -
Bills Receivable - -
Accounts Receivable 1,406,269 -
Accrued Income - _
Prepayments and Deposits 18,804,717 18,786,683
Income Tax Deposit - -
Deferred Employee Expenditure - -
Other 25,109,839 15,527,893
Stationery Stock 5,554,798 3,967,160
Commission Receivable - -
Deposit - -
Siddhartha Capital Dividend Advance 19,304,417 10,480,505
Others 250,624 1,080,228
Grand Total 45,320,824 34,314,576
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4.17 Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Money Market Deposits

Interbank Borrowing

6,783,067,279

4,654,967,731

Other Deposits from BFls

Settlement and Clearing Accounts

Other Deposits from BFls

Total

6,783,067,279

4,654,961,731

4.18 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Refinance from NRB

862,196

1,804,060

Standing Liquidity Facility

Lender of Last Resort facility from NRB

Securities sold under repurchase agreements

Other Payable to NRB

Total

862,196

1,804,060

4.19 Derivative Financial instruments

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Held for Trading

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contracts

Others

Held for Risk Management

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Others

Total

4.20 Deposits from customers

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Institutions Customers:

Term deposits

Call deposits

Current deposits

QOther

Individual Customers:

3,824,190,763

2,410,393,159

Term deposits

Saving deposits

Current deposits

3,824,790,763

2,410,393,159

Other

Total

3,824,790,763

2,410,393,159

4.20.1 Currency wise analysis of deposit form customers

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Nepalese Rupee

3,824,790,763

2,410,393,159

Indian Rupee

United State dollar

Other

Total

3,824,190,763

2,410,393,159
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4.21 Borrowings

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Domestic Borrowing

Nepal Government

Other Institutions

Other

Sub total

Foreign Borrowing

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions

Multilateral Development Banks

Other institutions

Sub total

Total

4.22 Provisions

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Provisions for redundancy

Provision for restructuring

Pending legal issues and tax litigation

Onerous contracts

QOther

Total

4.22.1 Movement in Provisions

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Balance at Shrawan 1

Provisions made during the year

Provisions used during the year

Provisions reversed during the year

Unwind of discount

Balance at Ashad end

4.23 Other Liabilities

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Liabilities for emloyees defined benefit obligations

(9,003,950)

(17,327,141)

Liabilities for leave

45,266,604

38,429,447

Short term employee benefits

7,089,511

11,111,568

Bills payable

Creditors and accruals

3,259,843

Interest payable on deposits

Interest payable on borrowing

661,644

Liabilities on deferred grant income

Unpaid Dividend

19,304,417

10,480,505

Employee bonus payable

66,999,838

32,864,540

QOther Liabilities

37,954,189

176,311,089

Audit Fee Payable

334,500

334,500

TDS Payable

8,730,875

14,743,635

Micro Finance Central Fund

971,588

18,318,760

Micro Finance Welfare Fund

124,605,362

Liabilities under Operating Lease

407,286

343,479

Staff Payable

979,969

2,709,976

Others

26,529,972

15,255,377

Total

170,870,454

252,531,652
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4.23.1. A Defined Benefit Obligation

The amounts recognised in the statements of financials positions are as follows :

Particulars 31-03-2076 32-03-2075
Present value of unfunded obligations 88,551,594 57,656,619
Present value of funded obligations - -
Total present value of obligations 88,551,594 57,656,619
Fair value of plan assets 97,555,542 74,983,759
Present value of net obligations (9,003,948) (17,327,140)
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations (9,003,948) (17,327,140)
4.23.2 A : Plan Assets
Plan assets comprise

Particulars 31-03-2076 32-03-2075
Equity securities - -
Government bonds - -
Bank deposit - -
Other 97,555,542 74,983,759
Total 97,555,542 74,983,759
4.23.3 A : Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Particulars 31-03-2076 32-03-2075
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 57,656,619 60,186,564
Actuarial losses 19,238,163 (15,923,629)
Benefits paid by the plan (2,345,234) (3,747,296)
Current service costs; Past Service Cost and interest 14,002,046 17,140,980
Defined benefit obligations at Ashad end 88,591,594 57,656,619
4.23.4 A : Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Particulars 31-03-2076 32-03-2075
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 74,983,759 60,863,409
Contributions paid into the plan 24917,017 12,987,190
Benefits paid during the year (2,345,234) (3,747,296)
Actuarial (losses) gains (6,851,017) (685,629)
Expected return on plan assets 6,851,017 5,566,085
Fair value of plan assets at Ashad end 97,555,542 14,983,799
4.23.5 A : Amount recognised in profit or loss
Particulars 2075/76 2074/15
Current service costs 9,141,672 12,184,382
Past service costs-(non Vested) - -
Past service costs (Vested) = -
Interest on obligation 4,860,374 4,956,598
Expected return on plan assets (6,851,017) (5,566,085)
Total 1,151,029 11,574,895
4.23.6 A : Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars 2075/16 2074/15

Acturial (gain)/loss 26,089,180 (15,238,000)
Total 26,089,180 (15,238,000)
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4.23.7 A : Actuarial assumptions

Particulars 2075/16 2074/15
Discount rate 8.5% 8.5%
Expected return on plan asset
Future salary increase 1.5% 71.5%
Withdrawal rate 5% 5.0%
0 to 3 Years 3% 3.0%
310 5 Years 5% 5.0%
510 10 Years 2% 2.0%
10 to 45 Years 0.5% 0.5%
4.23.1. B Long Term Benefit Obligation
The amounts recognised in the statements of financials positions are as follows :
Particulars 31-03-2076 32-03-2075
Present value of unfunded obligations 45,266,604 38,429,447
Present value of funded obligations - -
Total present value of obligations 45,266,604 38,429,447
Fair value of plan assets - -
Present value of net obligations 45,266,604 38,429,447
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations 45,266,604 38,429,447
4.23.2 B : Plan Assets
Plan assets comprise
Particulars 31-03-2076 32-03-2075
Equity securities - -
Government bonds - -
Bank deposit - -
Other - -
Total - -
4.23.3 B : Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations
Particulars 31-03-2076 32-03-2075
Long Term benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 38,429,447 32,980,662
Actuarial losses (6,519,685) (4,876,774)
Benefits paid by the plan - -
Current service costs; Past Service Cost and interest 13,356,842 10,325,559
Long Term benefit obligations at Ashad end 45,266,604 38,429,441
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4.23.4 B : Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1

Contributions paid into the plan

Benefits paid during the year

Actuarial (losses) gains

Expected return on plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at Ashad end

4.23.5 B : Amount recognised in profit or loss

Particulars

2075/16

2074/15

Current service costs

10,127,806

7,522,203

Past service costs-(non Vested)

Past service costs (Vested)

Acturial (gain)/loss

(6,519,685)

(4,876,774)

Interest on obligation

3,229,036

2,803,356

Expected return on plan assets

Total

6,831,157

5,448,785

4.23.6 B : Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars

2075/16

2074/15

Acturial (gain)/loss

Total

4.23.7 B : Actuarial assumptions

Particulars

2075/16

2074/15

Discount rate

8%

8.5%

Expected return on plan asset

Future salary increase

8%

7.5%

Withdrawal rate

0to 3 Years

3%

3%

3 to 5 Years

5%

5%

510 10 Years

2%

2%

10 to 45 Years

0.5%

0.5%

4.24 Debt secutities issued

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss

Debt securities issued at amortised cost

Total

4.25 Subordinate Liabilities

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Redeemable preference shares

Irredemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities component)

Other

Total

RS 3reRf alffics ARV HAM 31.d. Q00Y/00G




e orgfda fadir ven fafies

= Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Santha Limited
(AT T ST “BI” ST IoTToiel ATl Eea)
4.26 Share Capital
Particulars 31-03-2076 32-03-2075
Ordinary Shares 713,410,442 703,100,402
Convertible Preference Shares (Equity component) - -
Irredemable Preference Shares (Equity component) = -
Perpetual debt (Equity component only) = -
Total 173,410,442 703,100,402
4.26.1 Share capital detail
Particulars 31-03-2076 32-03-2075
Authorised capital
25,000,000 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each 2,500,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued Capital
7,031,004.02 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 2074-75) 703,100,402
7,734,104.42 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 2075-76) 773,410,442
Suscribed and paid up capital
7,031,004.02 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 2074-75) 703,100,402
7,734,104.42 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 2075-76) 773,410,442
Total 173,410,442 703,100,402
4.26.2 Ordinary Share Ownership
31-03-2076 32-03-2075
Particulars % of holding Amount % of holding Amount
Domestic ownership 100.00% 773,410,442 100.00% 703,100,401
Nepal Government
"A" Class licenced institutions
Other Licenced institutions
Other institutions & individuals
Public 49.00% 378,971,057 49.00% 344,519,143
Other 51.00% 394,439,385 51.00% 358,581,258
Foreign Ownership
Total 100% 113,410,442 100.00% 703,100,401
List of Shareholders holding more than 0.5% shares
S.N Name of Shareholders Paid-up Amount % Type
1 | Nabil Bank Ltd. 72,863,526 9.42 Promoter
2 | Nepal Bank Ltd. 72,863,526 9.42 Promoter
3 | Krishi Bikas Bank Ltd. 54 403,875 7.03 Promoter
4 | Lumbini Bikas Bank Ltd. 72,863,526 9.42 Promoter
5 | Bikas Aayojana Sewa Kendra 84,521,107 10.93 Promoter
6 | Batabaran Tatha Krishi Niti Anusandhan Prachar Abum Bikas Kendra 4,858,814 0.63 Promoter
7 | Pitambar Prasad Acharya 5,395,109 0.70 Promoter
8 | Nabil Bank Ltd. 27,044,069 3.50 Public
9 | Nepal Bank Ltd. 10,369,279 1.34 Public
10 | Krishi Bikas Bank Ltd. 20,192,480 2.61 Public
11 | Lumbini Bikas Bank Ltd. 27,450,409 3.55 Public
12 | Bikas Aayojana Sewa Kendra 29,670,987 3.84 Public
13 | Keshari Chandra Kucheriya 7,536,800 0.97 Public
14 | Rahul Kumar Agarwal 3,986,501 0.52 Public
15 | Manjushree Finance Ltd. 5,480,300 0.71 Public
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Paid up share capital of the Laghubittiya has moved over the years as follows:

Financial Year

Cumulative Paid Up Capital

Remarks

69 Ashad

106,130,000

Addition

21,230,000

70 Ashad

127,360,000

Addition

44,580,000

71 Ashad

171,940,000

Addition

85,987,690

72 Ashad

257,927,690

Addition

90,273,346

73 Ashad

348,201,036

Issue of Bonus Share

96,979,366

Issue of Right Share

257,920,000

74 Ashad

703,100,402

Issue of Bonus Share

70,310,040

75 Ashad

773,410,442

4.27 Reserves

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Statutory general reserve

307,353,218

222,583,900

Exchange equilisation reserve

Corporate social responsibility reserve

7,744,016

4,726,403

Capital redemption reserve

Regulatory reserve

102,563,883

14,665,362

Investment adjustment reserve

Capital reserve

Assets revaluation reserve

Fair value reserve

10,000

Dividend equalisation reserve

Actuarial Reserve

(22,088,289)

Client Protection Fund

222,208,940

41,941,037

Micro Finance Protection Fund

5,000,000

Staff Training Fund

8,406,890

5,793,164

Total

626,198,658

294,709,866

4.28 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Contingent liabilities

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Capital commitment

Lease Commitment

Litigation

Total

4.28.1: Contingent Liabilities

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Acceptance and documentary credit

Bills for collection

Forward exchange contracts

Guarantees

Underwriting commitment

Other commitments

Total
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4.28.2: Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Undisbursed amount of loans

Undrawn limits of overdrafts

Undrawn limits of credit cards

Undrawn limits of letter of credit

Undrawn limits of guarantee

Total

4.28.3: Capital commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in financial statements

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Total

4.28.4: Lease commitments

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable
operating lease, where the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not laterthan 5 years

Later than 5 years

Sub total

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease, where the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years

Sub total

Grand total

4.28.5: Litigation

Particulars

31-03-2076

32-03-2075

Contingent Tax Liabilities-Income Tax
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4.29 Interest Income

Particulars

2075-16

2074-15

Cash and cash equivalent

9,318,447

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial institutions

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions

5,241,719

Loans and advances to customers

1,701,652,623

1,154,354,999

Investment securities

Loan and advances to staff

13,844,198

7,555,389

Other Interest Income

Total interest income

1,724,815,268

1,167,152,107

4.30 Interest Expense

Particulars

2075-16

2074-15

Due to bank and financial institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

76,850

137,413

Deposits from customers

248,833,351

162,705,539

Borrowing

606,435,276

375,932,854

Debt securities issued

Subordinated liabilities

Other Charges

8,671,304

Total Interest expense

864,016,780

538,775,806

4.31 Fees and commission income

Particulars

2075-16

2074-15

Loan administration fees

Service fees

239,897,101

114,061,979

Consortium fees

Commitment fees

DD/TT/Swift fees

Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees

Renewal fees

Prepayment and swap fees

12,191,302

7,202,099

Investment banking fees

Asset management fees

Locker rental

Other fees and commision income

9,936,071

6,384,802

Total Fees and Commission Income

262,024,413

127,648,880

4.32 Fees and commission Expense

Particulars

2075-176

2074-15

ATM management fees

VISA/Master card fees

Guarantee commission

Brokerage

DD/TT/Swift fees.

Remittance fees and commission

773,835

196,515

QOther fees and commission expense

CIC Fees

Mobile Banking Expenses

ATM Card management and Disposal Charges

Total Fees and Commission Expense

113,835

196,515
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4.33 Net Trading Income

Particulars

2075-16

2074-15

Changes in fair value of trading assets

(ain/loss on disposal of trading assets

Interest income on trading assets

Dividend income on trading assets

(Gain/loss foreign exchange transation

Other

Net Trading Income

4.34 Other Operating Income

Particulars

2075-16

2074-15

Foreign exchange revauation gain

Gain/loss on sale of investment securities

Fair value gain/loss on investment properties

Dividend on equity instruments

Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment

7,433

390,258

(ain/loss on sale of investment property

Operating lease income

Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver

(Other Operating Income

Share of Income of Associates

Total

1,433

390,258

4.35 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

Particulars

2075-76

2074-75

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to BFIs

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customers

6,652,509

40,064,504

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with BFIs

Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties

( )
( )
( )
( )
Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment
( )
( )
( )

Impairment charge/(reversal) on Other Assets

199,256

Total

6,652,509

40,263,760

4.36 Personal Expenses

Particulars

2075-16

2074-15

Salary

145,155,762

121,555,828

Allowances

79,872,842

72,327,975

Gratuity Expense

9,141,672

(9,013,570)

Provident Fund

13,019,364

11,171,027

Uniform

2,471,500

2,270,000

Training & development expense

5,221,349

Leave encashment

11,519,535

18,827,430

Medical

9,833,287

9,278,307

Insurance

Employees incentive

2,917,690

2,504,419

Cash-settled share-based payments

Pension expense

Finance expense under NFRS

9,428,048

3,185,011

Other expenses related to staff

Subtotal

288,581,049

232,106,427

Employees honus

66,999,838

32,864,541

Grand Total

355,580,887

264,970,968
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4.37 Other Operating Expenses

Particulars 2075-76 2074-75
Directors' fee 1,185,000 996,400
Directors' expense 3,383,070 705,492
Auditors' remuneration 339,000 339,000
Other audit related expense 217 341 162,619
Professional and legal expense 529,878 15,000
Office administration expense (4.37 A) 75,173,435 49,989,778
Operating Lease expense (4.37 B) 15,459,957 12,561,957
Operating expense of investment properties - -
Corporate social responsibility expense 1,220,853 -
Donations - -
Onerous lease provisions - -
(Other Expenses 3,729,138 3,098,494
Repair & Maintenance Building - -
Repair & Maintenance Vehicle 2459 317 1,855,697
Repair & Maintenance Others - -
Repair & Maint.. Office Equipment & Furniture 1,269,821 1,242,797
Share Issue Expenses - -
Techinical Fees - -
Total 101,237,672 67,868,740
4.37 A Ofice Administration Expenses
Particulars 2075-76 2074-75
Insurance 11,111,551 612,594
Postage, Telephone 3,920,413 3,645,981
Printing & Stationery 6,794,395 5,225,655
Newspaper & Periodicals - 21,000
Advertisements 387,823 586,909
Travelling Expenses 14,050,573 6,499,927
Fuel Expenses 6,259,623 9,987,810
Entertainment - -
AGM Expenses 441,062 431,128
Annual Fee - -
(Office Expenses 18,081,719 14,429,130
Annual Megting Fee -
Branch Opeining Expenses - -
Local Tax and Rates - -
Business Promotion Expenses = -
Fund Transfer Expenses - -
Renewal Fee Expenses 7,758,368 5,923,855
Expense Not Capitalized - -
Client Protection Fund 3,489,265 -
QOther 2,878,642 2,625,789
Total 15,173,435 49,989,718
4.31 B Operating Lease Expenses
Particulars 2075-76 2074-15
House Rent Expenses 13,419,938 10,982,598
Electricity Expenses 2,040,019 1,579,359
Security Expenses - -
Total 15,459,957 12,561,957

90%  31BR} anffes AENRUT Jall 31.d. Q0OY/00k




Sl crgfda fadia ien foifdes
Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Santha Limited
(AT T ST “BI” ST IoTToiel ATl Eea)

4.38 Depreciation and Amortisation

Particulars 2075-76 2074-75
Depreciation on property and equipment 8,114,525 7,308,566
Depreciation on investment property - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 222,218 202,975
Total 8,336,744 1,511,541
4.39 Non Operating Income
Particulars 2075-76 2074-75
Recovery of Loan written off 109,529 43,852
Other Income 242,327 -
Total 351,856 43,852
4.40 Non Operating expense
Particulars 2075-76 2074-75
Loan written off - _
Redundancy provision
Expense of restructuring
QOther expense
Total - -
4.41 Income Tax Expenses
Particulars 2075-76 2074-15
Current Tax Expenses 181,601,111 104,077,283
Current Year 181,601,111 100,785,343
Adjustment for Prior Years - 3,291,940
Deferred tax Expenses 26,206,564 6,921,400
Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences 26,206,564 6,921,400
Change in tax Rate -
Recognition of Previously unrecognized Tax Losses - -
Total Income tax expense 207,807,675 110,998,683
4.41.1: Reconciliation of Tax Expenses and Accounting Profit
Particulars 2075-76 2074-75
Profit Before Tax 650,600,602 375,641,767
Tax Amount at the Rate of 30% 195,180,181 112,694,330
Add: Tax Effect of the expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose - 2,120,107
Less: Tax Effect on Exempt Income - -
Add/Less: Tax Effect on other ltems (13,579,070) (10,737,154)
Total Income Tax Expenses 181,601,111 104,077,283
Effective Tax Rate 21.91% 21.11%
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5. Disclosures & Additional Information

1.1 Risk Management
In compliance with Nepal Rastra Bank Directive on 6 "Corporate Governance", the Board of bank has established a Risk Management Committee
with clear terms of reference. As at the date of this report, the Bank'’s Risk Management Committee comprised of the following:

S.N. | Members of Risk Management Committee Designation
1 |Mr Yagya Prasad Sharma Co-ordinator
2 | Mr. Ramesh Kumar Raghubansi Member
3 | Mr. Hem Kumar Kafle Member
4 | Mr. Hari Prasad Acharya Member Secretary

The Committee meets at least four times annually. The committee oversees and reviews the fundamental prudential risks including operational,

credit, market, reputational, capital and liquidity risk etc.

The responsibilities of Risk Management Committee are as follows:

a.  Formulate policies and guidelines for identification, measurement, monitoring and control all major risk categories.

b.  Ensuring the bank has clear, comprehensive and well documented policies and procedure.

c.  Defining the bank’s overall risk tolerance in relation to credit risk.

d.  Ensuring that bank’s significant risks exposure is maintained at prudent levels and consistent with the available capital.
Apart from Board Level Risk Management Committee the other committees and groups as mentioned below supports for Overall Risk
Management.

i)  Risk Governance
Risk management committee of the bank has formed to review the credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk of the bank. Apart from this
the bank has formed the Assets Liability Management Committee to monitor Liquidity risk as well as market risk, AML CFT committee in
order to monitor the operational risk. The committee and subcommittee has effectively discharged their duties & responsibility.
Risk Management Department conducts periodical financial surveillance and monitoring. In addition to this, the risk management
committee analyse the Stress testing of the bank as required by Nepal Rastra Bank and its impact and corrective action to mitigate the
risk.
Through its risk management framework, the Bank seeks to efficiently manage credit, market and liquidity risks which arise directly
through the Bank’s commercial activities as well as operational, regulatory and reputational risks which arise as a normal consequence
of any business undertaking. As part of this framework, the Bank uses a set of principles that describe its risk management culture. The
bank has developed Risk Management Policy, Guideline & Framework 2017 to manage Credit risk,Market risk and liquidity risk.
The major risk areas and mitigation mechanism is as given below;

1)  Credit Risk
Credit risk is the potential for loss due to failure of counterparty to meet its obligations to pay the Bank in accordance with agreed terms.
The bank has Credit Policy Guidelines (CPG) that, inter alia, consist of areas of lending, eligibility of borrower, loan application format and
requirement, necessary documents for processing loans, risk assessment areas, loan approval authority and other general credit principles.
The CPG has been formulated by keeping in mind the prudential norms given by NRB.
A standardized loan application forms has been in use for facilitating collection and analysis of all the relevant data for evaluating credit
worthiness and proper evaluation of the credit risk of the prospective borrower. The factors considered in evaluating loan applications normally
includedprospects of the business, management of the firm/company, financial analysis- income statement, balance sheet, cash flow
statement, key financial indicators, key risk and mitigates. Further, inspection and supervision are also conducted before approval of the loan
for pre-analysis and after the disbursement of loan as well for monitoring the utilization of loan.

2)  Operational Risk
Operational risk is the prospect of loss of resulting from inadequate or failed procedures, systems or policies, employee errors, system failures,
fraud or other criminal activity, any event that disrupts business processes.
Operational risk exposures are managed through a consistent set of management processes that drive risk identification, assessment, control
and monitoring. For the control of operational risk of institution, it has Financial Administration Policy, Employee Bylaws, operational manual,
AML/CFT policy, Suspicious Transaction identification Procedure, Politically exposed person policy, which guides the day to day operation.
Each risk control owner is responsible for identifying risks that are material and for maintaining an effective control environment across the
organization. Risk control owners have responsibility for the control of operational risk arising from the management of the following activities:
External Rules & Regulations, Liability, Legal Enforceability, Damage or Loss of Physical Assets, Safety & Security, Internal Fraud or Dishonesty,
External Fraud, Information Security, Processing Failure, and Model. Operational risks can arise from all business lines and from all activities
carried out by the Bank. Operational Risk management approach seeks to ensure management of operational risk by maintaining a complete
process universe defined for all business segments, products and functions processes.
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3)

4)

3)

6)

)

8)

Market Risk

Risks arising out of adverse movements in interest rates and equity prices are covered under Market Risk Management. Market Risk is the
potential for loss of earnings or economic value due to adverse changes in financial market rates or prices. Institution exposure to market risk
arises principally from customer driven transactions.

In line with Risk Management Guidelines prescribed by NRB, the Bank focuses on risk management in addition to that Interest rate risk is
assessed at a regular interval to strengthen market risk management. The market risk is managed within the risk tolerances and market risk
limits set by ALCO. ALCO regularly meets, analyse and takes decision over the Market Risk by analysing the internal as well as external factor.
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that the Bank either does not have sufficient liquid financial resources available to meet all its obligations as they
fall due, or can only access these financial resources at excessive cost. The Liquidity Risk is managed by ALCO. The ALCO has developed the
Unified Treasury circular for overall liquidity management of bank.

Reputational Risk

Reputational risk is a risk of loss resulting from damages to reputation of institution, in lost revenue; increased operating, capital or regulatory
costs; or destruction of shareholder value.

Reputational risk is managed by the management committee which are responsible for protecting the institution’s reputation locally and has
the responsibility to ensure that the Bank does not undertake any activities that may cause material damage to the reputation of institution.

Employee Benefit Risk

Employee benefit risk is the potential risk of loss due to having to meet shortfall in the Bank's defined benefits gratuity and leave encashment
schemes.

The gross obligation for gratuity is calculated considering the salary at the time of retirement of the individual staff and number of years’
service with the Bank. The home leave can be accumulated for maximum period of 60 days for total period served by individual staff. The gross
obligation for leave encashment is calculated considering the last drawn salary multiplied by no of eligible days for leave encashment.

Internal Control

The Board is committed to managing risks and in controlling its business and financial activities in a manner which enables it to maximize
profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks which can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance with applicable laws
and regulations and enhance resilience to external events. To achieve this, the Board has adopted policies and procedures of risk identification,
risk evaluation, risk mitigation and control/monitoring.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its Committees, Management and Internal Audit.
The Audit Committee has reviewed the effectiveness of the Bank's system of internal control during the year and provided feedback to the Board
as appropriate. The bank has outsourced the Internal Audit function to maintain independency on the internal control system of institution. The
Internal Audit monitors compliance with policies/standards and the effectiveness of internal control structures across the Company through its
program of business/unit audits. The Internal Audit function is focused on the areas of greatest risk as determined by a risk-based assessment
methodology. Internal Audit reports are quarterly forwarded to the Audit Committee. The findings of all audits are reported to the Chief Executive
Officer and Business Heads for initiating immediate corrective measures.

Any Other Risk

Compliance Risk
Compliance risk is the risk of legal or regulatory sanctions, material financial loss, or loss to reputation due to failure to comply with laws, rules
and standards.

Deprosc is committed to follow best practices and market standards in the areas of accountability, transparency and business ethics. The
Development Bank aims at a zero tolerance of misconduct and corruption.

In the day-to-day operations the three lines of defense model defines the roles and responsibilities for compliance and integrity risk
in the Development Bank.

The first line of defense lies with the respective Development Bank departments and units, which are responsible for ensuring that
compliance risks are identified, understood and reported to the decision making bodies of the Development Bank and to Compliance Officer.

The second line of defense lies with Compliance Officer, which assesses and monitors the compliance and integrity risks and coordinates
its control activities with the Risk Management Unit.

Internal Audit is the third line of defense.

The Compliance function assists the Development Bank in identifying, assessing, monitoring and reporting on compliance risks in matters
relating to the institution, its operations and the personal conduct of staff members. The Chief Compliance Officer reports to the CEO.

Strategic Risk

Strategic risk is the risk in achieving Development Bank's strategic objectives, both from internal and external events and scenarios which
prevent from achieving strategic objectives.

310 dIfficn ATENRUT JaT 31.d. Q0Y/06e 109



— S o fadi e foifdies
mmwr J Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Santha Limited
(AT T ShalTE “” (T IoTTold ATl &ed)

Strategic Risk can be further defined as:
° Exposure to loss resulting from a strategy that runs out to be inappropriate.

. Risk associated with future plans and strategies, including plans for entering new services, expanding existing services through
enhancements and merger, enhancing infrastructures etc.

Current and prospective impact of strategic decisions made by management arising from adverse business decisions, improper implementation
of decisions or lack of responsiveness to industry change etc.

Periodic (yearly) review of the strategy is being done by Management Committee and reported to BOD regarding: status of the strategic
objective’s achievement as decided, execution status whether the right talent and infrastructures support the achievement of the objective or
about unintended consequences of the strategy, if any for their timely corrections/updates if found to be necessary.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises when there is a mismatch between positions, which are subject to interest rate adjustment within a specified period.
Interest rate risk is usually assessed from two common perspectives. Earnings perspective, which focuses on the impact of variation in
interest rate on accruals or reported earnings, and economic value perspective, which reflects the impact of fluctuation in the interest rates on
economic value of a financial institution.

The Development Bank measures and manages interest rate risk by estimating the sensitivity of the economic value of its balance sheet to an
interest rate shock. The sensitivity is measured by means of interest rates on the present value of interest-bearing assets and liabilities.

AML/CFT Risk

AML/CFT risk is related with providing financial services to money launders and terrorists for channelling of money derived from crime or aimed
at funding terrorism.

The strictness of the provisions made in laws and directives reflect the seriousness of this issue; non-compliance of which may cause
significant reputational risk as well as may result in adverse consequences. Development Bank have been closely monitoring the AML/CFT
policies, procedures, guidelines and practices of Banks & Financial Institutions (BFls).

A separate AML/CFT Unitis established under direct supervision and control of Compliance Officer which looks after the effective implementation
and compliance of AML/CFT related prevailing Acts, Rules and Directives.

5.2  Capital Management
i. Qualitative disclosures

The bank has maintained the capital adequacy as per Capital adequacy framework, 2007 (Updated July 2008) as required by Nepal Rastra
Bank. The main objective of this framework is to develop a safe and sound financial system by way of sufficient amount of qualitative capital
and risk management practices. The total equity of the bank comprises of paid up capital, statutory reserves and other reserves. The bank does
not have any other complex or hybrid capital instruments. Capital adequacy ratio as on Ashad end 2076 is 12.42% and 12.90% on core capital
and capital fund respectively.

Assessment of capital adequacy of bank is done on regular basis taking into considerations the exposure of bank. Also, the analysis of
possible impact on capital adequacy is being done on regular basis taking into consideration the future impacts on assumptive basis. Capital
adequacy of bank and impact in capital due to future change in nature and size of business is discussed in Risk Management Committee and
is summarized in board. Regular monitoring of nature of business is being done so that unexpected negative impact could not take place in
capital adequacy of bank. Reporting to regulatory body is being done as prescribed by compliance department.

The internal capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) is a comprehensive process which requires board and senior management
oversight, monitoring, reporting and internal control reviews at regular intervals to ensure the alignment of regulatory capital requirement with
the true risk profile of the bank and thus ensure long-term safety and soundness of the bank. The key components of an effective ICAAP are
discussed below.

a. Board and senior management oversight

Board and senior management oversight bank management is responsible for understanding the nature and level of risk being taken by the
bank and how this risk relates to adequate capital levels. It is also responsible for ensuring that the formality and sophistication of the risk
management processes is commensurate with the complexity of its operations. A sound risk management process, thus, is the foundation for
an effective assessment of the adequacy of a bank’s capital position.

The board of directors of the bank are responsible for setting the bank’s tolerance for risks. The board also ensures that management
establishes a mechanism for assessing various risks; develops a system to relate these risks to the bank’s capital level and sets up a
method for monitoring compliance with internal policies. It is equally important that the board instills strong internal controls and thereby an
effective control environment through adoption of written policies and procedures and ensures that the policies and procedures are effectively
communicated throughout the bank.
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b.  Sound Capital Assessment

Another crucial component of an effective ICAAP is the assessment of capital. In order to be able to make a sound capital assessment the bank
should, at minimum, have the following:

Policies and procedures designed to ensure that the bank identifies, measures, and reports all material risks;

° A process that relates capital to the level of risk;

A process that states capital adequacy goals with respect to risk, taking account of the bank's strategic focus and business plan; and
° A process of internal control, reviews and audit to ensure the integrity of the overall management process.

c.  Comprehensive assessment of risk

All material risks faced by the bank should be addressed in the capital assessment process. Nepal Rastra Bank recognizes that not all
risks can be measured precisely. However, bank should develop a process to estimate risks with reasonable certainties. In order to make a
comprehensive assessment of risks, the process should, at minimum, address the following forms of risk.

1 Credit Risk

2. Credit Concentration Risk
3.  Operational Risk
4
5

Market Risk
. Liquidity Risk
d.  Monitoring and reporting
The bank has established an adequate system for monitoring and reporting risk exposures and assessing how the bank'’s changing risk profile

affects the need for capital. The bank’s senior management or board of directors, on a regular basis, receive reports on the bank's risk profile
and capital needs. These reports allow senior management to:

. Evaluate the level and trend of material risks and their effect on capital levels;
. Evaluate the sensitivity and reasonableness of key assumptions used in the capital assessment measurement system;

° Determine that the bank holds sufficient capital against the various risks and is in compliance with established capital adequacy goals;
and

. Assess its future capital requirements based on the bank's reported risk profile and make necessary adjustments to the bank’s strategic
plan accordingly.

e. Internal Control Review

The bank’s internal control structure is essential to a sound capital assessment process. Effective control of the capital assessment process
includes an independent review and, where appropriate, the involvement of internal or external audits. The bank’s board of directors has a
responsibility to ensure that management establishes a system for assessing the various risks, develops a system to relate risk to the bank’s
capital level, and establishes a method for monitoring compliance with internal policies. The board should regularly verify whether its system
of internal controls is adequate to ensure well-ordered and prudent conduct of business. The bank should conduct periodic reviews of its risk
management process to ensure its integrity, accuracy, and reasonableness. Key areas that should be reviewed include:

. Appropriateness of the bank’s capital assessment process given the nature, scope and complexity of its activities;

Identification of large exposures and risk concentrations;

Accuracy and completeness of data inputs into the bank’s assessment process;

Reasonableness and validity of scenarios used in the assessment process; and

Stress testing and analysis of assumptions and inputs.

5.3 Classification of Financial assets & financial liabilities

Financial Assets Amortized Cost F;)'Ir“‘;L"h::IhSrlsggI: c(:ll:lir Fa";r‘:;:;'zrt?;gggh Total

Cash in hand 11,203,439 11,203,439
Balances with B/Fls 342,999,548 342,999,548
Money at call and short notice 37,852,901 37,852,901
Interbank placement - -
Balance at NRB

Derivative financial instrument -
Loans & Advances 12,224,365,840 12,224,365,840
Government bonds - -
Government treasury bills - -
Equity investments 2,010,000 2,010,000
Other assets 20,210,985 20,210,985
Total Financial Assets 12,636,632,713 2,010,000 - 12,638,642,713
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Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial Liabilities Amortized Cost Held for trading Designated at FVTPL Total
Deposits from customers 3,824.790,763 3,824,790,763
Due to Banks & Financial Institutions 6,783,067,279 6,783,067,279
Due to Nepal Rastra Banks 862,196 862,196
Debt Securities - -
Employee related liabilities 119,355,953 119,355,953
Bills payable 3,259,843 3,259,843
Creditors and accruals - _
Interest payable on deposit - -
Interest payable on borrowing - -
Unpaid Dividend 19,304,417 19,304,417
Liabilities under Operating Lease 407,286 407,286
Other liabilities 37,546,904 37,546,904
Total Financial Liabilities 10,788,594,641 - - 10,788,594,641

5.4 Operating Segment Information F/Y 2075/76

1. General information

a)
An operating segment is a component of an entity:

J that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to
transactions with other components of the same entity),

J whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be
allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

2. Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities

S Particulars Province 1 Province 2 Province 3 Province 4 Province 5 Province 6 Province 7 Total
a  [Revenues from external customers 126,174219]  751,449,501] 446,639,762  216,465,823] 223,175,615 91,378,479 68,646,863
b (Intersegment revenues
¢ |Net Revenue 126,174,219 751,449,501 446,639,762  216,465823 223,175,615 91,378,479 68,646,863  1,923,930,262
d |Interest revenue 107,971,206 662,613,573 385,198,034 184,349,927 189,474,214 76,731,542 56,087,252
¢ |[Interest expense 63,673,303 359,327,513 212,646,705 99,257,899 102,873,694 42,511,690 29,774,358
f Netinterest revenue 44,297,904 303,286,059 172,551,329 85,092,028 86,600,520 34,219,852 26,312,894 752,360,587
g [Depreciation and amortisation E
h Segment profit /(loss) 44,297,904 303,286,059 172,551,329 85,092,028 86,600,520 34,219,852 26,312,894 752,360,587
Entity's interest in the profit or loss of
associates accounted for using equity
i |method - - - - - - - -
j |Other material non-cash items: -
Provision for Loan Loss
k  Impairment of assets E - - - - - E -
| Segment assets 818,621,264/ 5,086,042,578) 2,603,056,261 1,284,664,819 1416,657,421| 570,746,485  542,009,531| 12,321,798,358
m  [Segment liabilities 583,004,707) 3,940,533,883| 1,422,063,884) 712,750,429 858,236,354 361,657,798 344,670,841 8,222,917,896
3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities
The Bank has determined segments based on the geographical region i.e. District wise.
4,  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities
(a) Revenue
Total revenues for reportable segment 1,923,930,262
Other revenues 62,916,912
Elimination of intersegment revenues -
Entity’s revenues 1,986,847,174
(b) Profit or loss
Total profit or loss for reportable segments 752,360,587
QOther profit or loss
Elimination of intersegment profits
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Unallocated amounts: (309,567,659)

Profit before income tax 442,792,928

(c) Assets

Total assets for reportable segments 12,321,798,358

Other assets

Unallocated amounts 275,508,795

Entity’s assets 12,5917,307,154

(d) Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments 8,222 917,896

Other liabilities R

Unallocated liabilities 2,588,600,849

Entity’s liabilities 10,811,518,745

5. Information about geographical areas

Revenue from following geographical areas

(a) | Domestic 1,923,930,262
Province 1 126,174,219
Province 2 751,449,501
Province 3 446,639,762
Province 4 216,465,823
Province 5 223,175,615
Province 6 91,378,479
Province 7 68,646,863

(b) |Foreign -
Total 1,923,930,262

6.  Information about major customers

Revenue from a single external customer is less than 10 percent of bank’s total revenue.

5.5 Share options and share based payment

The microfinance does not have any share option and share based payment.

5.6  Contingent liabilities and commitment

Contingent Liabilities:
Where the microfinance undertakes to make a payment on behalf of its customers for guarantees issued for which an obligation to make a
payment has not arisen at the reporting date, those are included in these financial statements as contingent liabilities

Commitments:
Where the microfinance has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts,
future guarantees, whether cancellable or not and the Bank has not made payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in

these financial statement as commitments

Details of contingent liabilities and commitments are given in note 4.28

5.7 Related parties disclosures
Following has been identified as Related Parties for Microfinance under NAS 24 Related Parties:

a. Directors
b. Key Management Personnel of the Microfinance
c. Relatives of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

FY 2074-75
Directors
Deepak Khanal Deepak Khanal
Dr. Vrigurishi Duwadi Yagya Prasad Sharma
Rita Poudel Dr. Vrigurishi Duwadi
Ramesh Kumar Raghubanshi Rita Poudel
Nareshman Pradhan Ramesh Kumar Raghubanshi
Yagya Prakash Neupane Pratap Subedi
Subodh Lohani Nareshman Pradhan

Key Managerial Personnel
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Hem Kumar Kafle Amraj Khadka
Pushpa Raj Adhikari Murali Prasad Lamsal
Hari Prasad Acharya Hem Kumar Kafle
Buddhiraj Ghimire Pushpa Raj Adhikari
Yubraj Poudel Hari Prasad Acharya
Gyanendra Aryal Buddhiraj Ghimire
Pawanraj Pathak Yubraj Poudel
Raju Mahat Chhetri Gyanendra Aryal
Pawanraj Pathak
Raju Mahat Chhetri

Transaction during the Year

Particulars 2075-76 2074-75
Directors
Directors Sitting Fees 1,185,000 9,966,400
Interest Paid to directors on deposits
QOther directors' expenses (if any) 3,383,070 705,492
Total 4,568,070 10,671,892
Key Management Personnel
Remuneration and Benefit Paid 13,959,540 10,411,448
Post-Retirement Benefits 20,860,960 19,421,223
QOther Long-term Benefits
Borrowing during the year 9,401,033 4,529,084
Interest on Borrowing 349,705 302,796

Interest on account balances

QOther transactions benefits if any
Total 44,571,238 34,664,551
Reporting Date Balances

Particulars 2075-76 2074-75
Directors Deposits
KMP Deposits
Borrowings 1,430,987,488 832,097,849
QOther Receivable payables if any
Total 1,430,987,488 832,097,849

5.8  Merger and acquisition
There has been no merge and acquisation during the year.
5.9 Additional disclosures of non consolidated entities
Not Applicable

5.10 Events after reporting date
Microfinance monitors and assess events that may have potential impact to qualify as adjusting and / or non-adjusting events after the end
of the reporting period. All adjusting events are adjusted in the books with additional disclosures and non-adjusting material events are
discloses in the notes with possible financial impact, to the extent ascertainable.
There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to 31 Ashad 2076 till the signing of this financial statement.

5.11 Proposed Dividend
The Microfinance has proposed 30% of Bonus share on Share capital as on Ashad end 2076 which amounts to Nrs. 232,023,132.58 and 15%
of Cash dividend on Share capital as on Ashad end 2076 which amounts to Nrs.116,011,566 The Dividend is proposed for approval from up
coming AGM.
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5.12 Disclosure of effect of transition from previous GAAP to NFRSs

5.12.1. Reconciliation of equity

Particulars Explanatory Note As at 31.03.2076

Total equity under Previous GAAP 1,568,471,075
Adjustments under NFRSs:

Impairment on loan and advances -
Fair value & employees benefit accounting of staff loan

Lease accounting 1 (407,286)
Measurement of investment securities measured at fair value 2 10,000
Measurement of investment securities measured at fair value in associates -
Dividend Income from Associates -
Revaluation of property & equipment

Recognition of investment property

Amortisation of debt securities issued

Deferred tax 3 (49,042,576)
Defined benefit obligation of employees 4 14,255,040
Leave Acturial Valuation 5 8,751,551
Interest income 6 127,739,038
Other

Proposed Cash Dividend )i 116,011,566
Total Adjustment to equity 211,311,333
Total Equity under NFRSs 1,785,788,408

5.12.2. Reconciliation of profit or loss
Particulars Explanatory Note As at 31.03.2076

Previous GAAP 423,846,588
Adjustments under NFRSs:

Interest income 8 53,347,096
Impairment of loan and advances -
Employees benefit amortisation under staff loan 9 (9,428,048)
Defined benefit obligation of employee 4 2,760,624
Leave Acturial Valuation 5 986,199
Operating lease expense 1 (63,807)
Others -
Deferred Tax 3 (28,655,724)
Total Adjustment to profit or loss 18,946,340
Profit or loss under NFRSs 442,792,928
Other Comprehensive Income 10 (18,262,426)
Total Comprehensive income under NFRSs 424,530,502
Note

1) Rent Expenses booked over the rent period on equal amount on SLM Basis

2)  Investment in Shares of CMF value at cost

3)  Deferred Tax effect of all adjustment

4)  Gratuity Expenses booked as per acturial valaution

5  Leave Expenses booked as per acturial valuation

6)  Accrued Interest Receivable booked on accrual basis which in approximate to Effective Interest Rate

7)  Liaiblity Created for Proposed Dividend Reversed

8) Interest on Staff loan charged to finance income and Air of this year recongnized as income

9)  Employees benefit for amortisation under staff loan charged as staff cost

10)  Acturail Loss on Defined Benefit Plan net of tax charged to OCI
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5.12.3. Effect of NFRSs adoption for the statement of financial position

Particulars
Assets Explanatory As at 31.03.2076
Note Previous GAAP Effect of Transition to NFRS Amount as per NFRS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 392,055,887 - 392,055,887
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - - -
Placement with Bank and Financial

Institutions - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - -
Other Trading Assets - - -
Loans and Advances to BFIs - - -
Loans and Advances to Customers 1 11,837,152,553 256,217,195 12,093,369,748
Investment Securities 2 2,000,000 10,000 2,010,000
Current Tax Assets 3 - 19,171,923 19,171,923
Investment in Subsidiaries - - -
Investment in Associates - - -
Investment Property - - -
Property and Equipment 44,676,204 (0) 44,676,204
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 702,567 - 702,567
Deferred Tax Assets 4 17,114,522 (17,114,522) -
Other Assets 5 192,970,904 (147,650,079) 45,320,824
Total Assets 12,486,672,637 110,634,516 12,597,307,154

Liabilities Explanatory As at 31.03.2076
Note Previous GRAP Effect of Transition to NFRS | Amount as per NFRS

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 6 - 6,783,067,279 6,783,067,279
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 862,196 - 862,196
Derivative Financial Instruments - - -
Deposits from Customers 3,824,790,763 - 3,824,790,763
Borrowings 7 6,783,067,279 (6,783,067,279) -
Current Tax Liabilities - - -
Provisions - - R
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4 - 31,928,054 31,928,054
QOther Liabilities 8 309,481,326 (138,610,872) 170,870,454
Debt Securities Issued - - -
Subordinated Liabilities - - -
Total Liabilities 10,918,201,563 (106,682,818) 10,811,518,745
Equity

Share Capital 9 1,005,433,575 (232,023,133) 773,410,442
Share Premium - - -
Retained Earnings 10 209,915 385,969,394 386,179,309
Reserves 11 562,827,586 63,371,072 626,198,658
Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders 1,568,471,075 211,311,333 1,785,788 408
Non Controlling Interest

Total Equity 1,568,471,075 217,317,333 1,785,788,408
Total Liabilities and Equity 12,486,672,638 110,634,515 12,597,307,153

=
[=]
=3
<

Current tax reclassed from other assets
Deferred Tax effect of all adjustment

Borrowing reclassed to due to BFI
Borrowing reclassed to due to BFI

== OO~ U S WRN —
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Effect of reclassification of staff loan, expenses not written off and accured interest on loans and advances.

Accrued interest on loans booked on accrual basis and present value of staff loan reclassified to loans and advances to customers.
Investment securiies recognized at FV and accured interest on bond reclassified as investment securities.

Rent Expenses booked over the rent period on equal amount on SLM Basis and gratuity liability booked as per actuarial valuation.
Effect of reversal of proposed bonus share and proposed dividend.
Effect on profit due to adjustments of NFRS.
Effect of various regulatory reserve creation
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q 31'@'@%‘-& T‘I_-I'g; e Fgd 0&Y -Y¥oY¥q | zgIY¥&qR¥ | branch.anbukhaireni@ddbank.org.np
R | TR, FTER ElEccieIcin H 089 -Y¥%0% | QceIyY¥EqRy | branchbagar@ddbank.org.np
3 W, EREES [ceatileric RT&Y¥SqRE | branch.balewabazar@ddbank.org.np
¥ | T, 78 T gerat 0&Y -¥&9UR | RcE3Y¥EqRe | branchdamauli@ddbank.org.np
Y TﬁT@'I’@ITﬂ'IT, e ag"SU'ITﬁ'W g 0%Y¥ -¥R93%Y | Rz&Y¥&9qc | branch.gorkhabazar@ddbank.org.np
& | Sgelie, wIh T= ‘ﬂ@?’f 0%9 -¥30R9 | RcgY¥sqRR | branch.indrachowk@ddbank.org.np
@ | HTEATE, TaAuRTE 'FPEIW Bl 08T -Y¥0oY3I% | RzgIY¥Sq30 | branchkawasoti@ddbank.org.np
c | d@aTg, FwEh AW @A 089 -4899%¢ | Qzg3y¥€q37 | branch.lekhnath@ddbank.org.np
R | UAENESR, TTESN AATEE HEA 0&3 -¥993% | qcglY¥eq33 | branch.putalibazar@ddbank.org.np
o W TireErn foraraTe g RC&RY¥&q3Y | branchsimjung@ddbank.org.np
19 ﬁTﬁ-T, I %ﬁ_olg_"lT{ ey RT&Y¥eq3Yy | branch.singa@ddbank.org.np
13| TH9EEr, ARy e ﬂ@f?'f 0&% 4000¥¥ | QC&IY¥E93% | branch.syundibar@ddbank.org.np
93 | AT, MEEr AT Zarst RT&RY¥Gq3 | branch.tanglichowk@ddbank.org.np
9% | SIEmrEs, MeEn AT TET 0%¥ 400040 | Qzg3y¥€q3c | branch.thatipokhari@ddbank.org.np
qy | Arfag, g ElEE] q'{'lTr‘lffﬁ 0%3 ¥¥0%0¥ | QzgIY¥sq3R | branch.waling@ddbank.org.np
€ | gaAmrEd, Ted ATHAHOT GATA RT&RY4¥%939 | branch.thulipokhari@ddbank.org.np
TRA Y B FAGA Jead, TI=A At
FH| O FAAAEER AW, SMAT | @ FA=Smd A w A Aarda . LU
q | 9eEa, TU=E m qE 099 Y¥333 | RTERYYSI¥R | pranch.bhairahawa@ddbank.org.np
R | AR, TEeOrE AT |E 09T ¥9Y33€ | Qc&RY¥Sq¥3 | branchbhumahi@ddbank.org.np
3 | R, ®ueEe T AT TETE 0% YY0¥ET | Qre3y¥eqyy | branchbirpur@ddbank.org.np
¥ | 929d, U foue fatmr 099 ¥3TRIY | Rc&Y¥Sq¥Y | branchbutwal@ddbank.org.np
y | =ie-reieE, aiw HIITES m?ﬁ ocq ¥9300% | QzgY¥&eq¥s | branch.chandanichowk@ddbank.org.np
& | ETErETE], ga ferdar Zaerer 0TS ¥80STR | QC&IY¥E9¥9 | branch.dakhakwadi@ddbank.org.np
S Eﬁ%ﬁ?, ﬂ?lﬁ FHE AW Rc&RY¥¥%9¥T | branch.harmichaur@ddbank.org.np
c | foarg, e TATRTGT Al 0TS ¥¥034% | Qc&IY¥E9¥R | branch.liwang@ddbank.org.np
R | T, AT qt ot 00T YR9039 | Qz&RYYEIY9 | branch.parasi@ddbank.org.np
qo | IHAMT, aTF Ralkl ELES EZE OTR ¥030%¥R | Rc&Y¥&9YR | branch.purandhara@ddbank.org.np
19 | wl=ree, sarars -ﬁ%QT ELERUAGH] 0L ¥0T9Y | Rz&IYYEIY3 | branch.sandhikharka@ddbank.org.np
9% | AR, e RN @T 0Y YIRVLR | Rc&IY¥Lq Yo branch.tansen@ddbank.org.np
93 | 3TRIGIY, atdan ARTAETGT S RTA 0TY ¥0R06R | Qz&RYYEIYY | branch.thakurdwarabazar@ddbank.org.np
9% | SEMS FTerae] aig famea RCEY¥EQY49 | branch.bodgaun@ddbank.org.np

9% 3/8RY alffics ATENRUT HAT 37.d. Q00Y/ 006




fSuiea ergfda fadia dven feifdies

Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Santha Limited

(AT T ST “|” ST IoTTolel ATl Fea)

FH| O FAAEER AW, SMAT | @ TGS AN w A Hardat . LU
qy | Tees, g A= A= RT&IYY¥SqYY | branch.sishaniya@ddbank.org.np
& wﬁasrr{ arean TS = Rc&Y¥&qY& | branch.pragatibazar@ddbank.org.np
99 | ERA HE, ?ﬁf ©hH At qEdT Rc&RY¥%9YT | branch.rukumkot@ddbank.org.np
TR & W HACT THATR, A q=wiq
FE| e FAIEES A, ST qET FTEHH AT w A, Harga . LK
q é?vmm, T EEUERERI D] RCc&4¥%9%0 | branch.belpata@ddbank.org.np
Q AT, Eﬁl?ﬁﬂ'ﬁ'c," m RUSE 0Tl ¥¥oRR RC&Y¥RIe3 branch.manma@ddbank.org.np
3 | @aq, TSRS -ﬁ?&q Blicic otR ¥30399 | Rz&IYYEI&Y | branch,jajarkotkhalanga@ddbank.org.np
¥ | TR, S YU AT 0TY YRORER | R&RYY¥E9ER | branch.chandannath@ddbank.org.np
Y | HedaET, ‘ﬁ'ﬁﬁ R i 0T? ¥900Y% | Rz&RY¥E9%& | branch.mehelkuna@ddbank.org.np
€ | H@E, THRA = AR 0Tt Y32039Y | Rc€RY¥898Y | branchmusikot@ddbank.org.np
9 ﬁﬁ-—ﬁ, qAH qTawars St RC&RY¥S9q&c | branch.tribeni@ddbank.org.np
c | TTE, 4 TAFARGT AT QC&RY¥E9E9 | branch.gamgadhi@ddbank.org.np
? | TRAT, -ﬁ—@%r TEhT T RC%RY¥%9%0 | branch.ckatanagar@ddbank.org.np
TR @ H FACH A, DA I
FE| WG FAAEEEH AW, ST qrET Jerreha! AT HH A HaEa . ELE]
q | Tewee, BT fatz @re At RT&RY¥&963 | branch.bhimbasti@ddbank.org.np
R | TR, aE gist =T 083 ¥3900% | @c§3Y¥§990 | branch.chainpur@ddbank.org.np
3 @Tﬁ_vﬁ, FHeAredr s Al 0%9 %400099 | RzgRY¥E99¥ | branch.durgauli@ddbank.org.np
¥ | HEAE, F i Tighr= qfgd RCc&4¥%99Y | branch.chauwanibazar@ddbank.org.np
Y | TR, aE R 0%Y ¥R0%90 | Rz&RY¥&999q | branch.dasharathchanda@ddbank.org.np
& | @elgl, arelen REAEEIEREIE 0% ¥RORTT | Qc&RY¥E9SE | branch darchulakhalanga@ddbank.org np
9 | WTAEH, W™ W e 0% &R0RTT | Rz&RY¥E9YR | branch.mangalsen@ddbank.org.np
T | WS, arsi TS TSl 0% Y¥9RYT | Rc€RY¥E49T | branchmartadi@ddbank.org.np
? mﬂ? ATl @QT RHTT ELLR Rc&4¥%9co | branch.udasipur@ddbank.org.np
qo | HHEAR, Helrelt SHETS WS QC&R4¥&9CY | branch.satibazar@ddbank.org.np
99 | =NEAEEESE, SRS Ao AT 0%R ¥009%¥Y | Rz§Y¥EICR | branchchadanihaatbazar@ddbank.org.np
9 | Toruemrese, S Ericae e el 0¥ ¥9R0CY | Rz&Y¥E99S | branchpipallabazar@ddvank.org.np
12 E‘Q@'@WW, W TQW ikl OR%% ¥R0%&% | Rz&RY¥E9YR | branch tundikhelbazar@ddbank.org.np
9% | e, et TS Sl 0%% 4499R9 | Rc&Y¥&9T3 | branch.attariya@ddbank.org.np
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